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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Usha Martin Education & Solutions Ltd. 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
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We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Usha Martin Education & 

Solutions Ltd. ("the Company") which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, and the 

statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "the stand 

alone financial statements). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 20 I 3 in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023, and its profit, changes in equity and its 

cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sect ion 

143( 10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibili ties for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the stand alone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. 
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Sr. 
No. 
1 

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures of revenues and 
other related balances in view of adoption of Ind 
AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers" (new revenue accounting standard) 

Principal Audit Procedures 

We assessed the Company' s process to 
identify the impact of adoption of the new 
revenue accounting standard. 

Our audit approach consisted testing of the 
design and operating effectiveness of the 
internal controls and substantive testing as 
follows: 

The application of the new revenue accounting • 
standard involves certain key judgements relating 
to identification of distinct performance 
obligations, determination of transaction price of 
the identified performance obligations, the • 
appropriateness of the basis used to measure 
revenue recognized over a period. Additionally, 
new revenue accounting standard contains 
disclosures which involve collation of 
information in respect of disaggregated revenue 
and periods over which the remaining 
performance obligations will be satisfied 
subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to implementation of the new 
revenue accounting standard. 

Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts, and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the internal control, 
relating to identification of the distinct 
performance obi igations and 
determination of transaction price. We 
carried out a combination of procedures 
involving enquiry and observation, re­
performance and inspection of evidence in 
respect of operation of these controls. 

• Tested the relevant information 
technology systems' access and change 
management controls relating to contracts 
and related information used in recording 
and disclosing revenue in accordance with 
the new revenue accounting standard. 

• Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts and performed the fol lowing 
procedures: 
• Read, analyzed and identified the 

distinct performance obligations 111 

these contracts. 
• Compared these performance 

obligations with that identified and 
recorded by the Company. 

• Considered the terms of the contracts 
to determine the transaction price 
including any variable consideration 
to verify the transaction price used to 
compute revenue and to test the basis 
of estimation of the variable 
consideration. 
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• Samples in respect of revenue 
recorded for time and material 
contracts were tested using a 
combination of approved time sheets 
including customer acceptances, 
subsequent invoicing and historical 
trend of collections and disputes. 

• In respect of samples relating to fixed 
price contracts, progress towards 
satisfaction of performance obligation 
used to compute recorded revenue was 
verified with actual and estimated 
efforts from the time recording and 
budgeting systems. We also tested the 
access and change management 
controls relating to these systems. 

• Sample of revenues disaggregated by 
type and service offerings was tested 
with the performance obligations 
specified in the underlying contracts. 

• Performed analytical procedures for 
reasonableness of revenues disclosed 
by type and service offerings. 

• We reviewed 1hc col lalion ol' 
information and the logic of the report 
generated from the budgeting system 
used to prepare the disclosure relating 
to the periods over which the 
remaining performance obligations 
will be satisfied subsequent to the 
balance sheet date. 
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2. Accuracy of revenues and onerous obligations Principal Audit Procedures 
in respect of fixed price contracts involves 
critical estimates 

Estimated effort is a critical estimate to determine Our audit approach was a combination of test 
revenues and liability for onerous obl igations. of internal controls and substantive 
This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as it procedures which included the following: 
requires consideration of progress of the contract, 
efforts incurred till date and efforts required to • 
complete the remaining contract performance 
obi igations. 

Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to recording of efforts incurred 
and estimation of efforts required to 
complete the performance obligations. 

Refer Notes to the Standalone Financial 
Statements • Tested the access and application controls 

pertaining to time recording, allocation 
and budgeting systems which prevents 
unauthorized changes to recording of 
efforts incurred. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
through inspection of evidence of 
performance of these controls, tested the 
operating effectiveness of the internal 
controls relating to efforts incurred and 
estimated. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
performed a retrospective review of 
efforts incurred with estimated efforts to 
identify sign ificant variations and verify 
whether those variations have been 
considered in estimating the remaining 
efforts to complete the contract. 

• Reviewed a sample of contracts with 
unbilled revenues to idl!ntify poss ible 
delays in achieving milestones, which 
require change in estimated efforts to 
complete the remaining performance 
obligations. 

• Performed analytical procedures and test 
of details for reasonableness of incurred 
and estimated efforts. 
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3. 

4. 

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions & Principal Audit Procedures 
Recoverability of advance tax. 

Obtained detai Is of completed tax assessments 
and demands from management. Involvement 

Refer Notes to the Standalone Financial of our internal experts hardly found anything 
Statements to challenge the management's underlying 

assumptions in estimating the tax provision 
and recoverability and advance tax. 

Valuation of investments and impairment thereof: Held at cost. 

(a) Non-Current Investments in Body Corporate; 

Refer Notes to the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Responsibilities of Management's and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of 

the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 

accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibil ity also includes maintenance 

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; ,and 

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducced in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain aµdit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 

of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern. 

Statutory Audit Report (Standalone) for the year ended 31.03.2023 of Usha Matin Education & Solutions Ltd. 
Page 6 of 14 



TELEPHONE : 2212-6253, 2212-8016 
FAX : 00-91-33-2212 7476 
WEBSITE : www.gbasual\dcompany.org 
E-MAIL: s.lahiri@gbasu.ht 

G.BASU& Co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

BASU HOUSE 
ISTFLOOR 

3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROACH 
KOLKATA- 700 072 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of Section 143(ii) of the Act, we give in the Annexure-2 a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of Indian Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director. 

(t) We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (IFCOFR) of the 

company as on 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 25.05.2923 

as per Annexure-1 expressed an unmodified report. 

(g) Pursuant to Section- 197(16) of Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that 

remuneration paid to whole time Director is within limit as laid down under the section. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position 

11. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts 

for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. clause 11 ( c) related to transfer of stipulated amount to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund does not apply to the company. 

iv. As per information and explanations made available to us by the management, no 

fund have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 

other person(s) or entity(ies) with the understanding that such entities shall lend or 

Statutory Audit Report (Standalone) for the year ended 31.03.2023 of Usha Matin Education & Solutions Ltd. 
Page 8 of 14 



TELEPHONE: 2212-6253, 2212-8016 
FAX: 00--91-33-2212 7476 G. BASU & Co. 

BASU HOUSE 
JSTFLOOR 

WEBSITE : www.gbasuan,dcompany.org 
E-MAIL: s.lahiri@gbasu.hl 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS J, CHOWRJNGHEE APPROACH 
KOLKATA- 700 072 . 

invest in other person or entities by or on behalf of the company and the same is 

considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances. · 

(v) As per information and explanations made avai lable to us by the management, no 

funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), with 

the understanding that company shall lend or invest in other persons or entities by 

or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security on behalf of 

ultimate beneficiaries and the same is considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances. 

(vi). The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year under review. 

UDIN : 2 3 0 S"<-t 7 2. 8 BG, 2-ur P(J 3-' t., 2- For G. BASU & CO. 
Ch1rt1red Account1nt1 

Place Kolkata 

D ate 25.05.2023 
R. No. 3011~ k 

Al'tRA 
Partner 

M. No. 054728 
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ANNEXURE-1 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Usha Martin Education & 

Solutions Limited, ("the Company") as of 31" March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India . These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by JCAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143( I 0) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent I imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 

operating effectively as at 31st March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

UDIN 

Place 

Date 

a._30 ~'{72.g B4Z-Gt P(9 3 j lt 2--
Kolkata 

May 25, 2023 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

RNo. ~174E •~ 

UTAM MAITRA 
Partner 

M. No. 054728 
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ANNEXUR.E-2 

RE: USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

This is referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report of even date on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

i) The body corporate has fixed assets during the year. It has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. No report of 
conducting physical verification of fixed asset has been made available to us. The company has 
not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year. 

ii) The company is a service company. Accordingly it does not hold any physical inventories. 
Thus paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable. 

iii) During the year the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security 
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. 

iv) Accordingly to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of account, in the absence of any reported transaction during the year, clause 3(iv) 
does not apply. 

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant 
provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to 
the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. He nce. paragraph l(v) o f' the Order 
does not apply to the company. 

vi) The clause relating to maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 20 I 3 is not applicable to the company. Hence, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

vii) (a) Accordingly to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-Tax, Goods and 
Service, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory 
dues with the appropriate authorities. Accordingly to the information and explanation 
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 
31 st March, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become 
payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding· on 
account of any dispute. 
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viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no transaction that 
has not been recorded in the books of account but has been disclosed as income during the year 
in the tax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961 . 

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial 
institution, bank, government or dues to debenture holders (the company has no debenture 
holders). 

(b) As per information and explanation given to us, the company has not been declared willful 
defaulter by any bank, financial institution or other lender. 

(c ) The company has not applied for any term loan and hence para 3(ix)(c) is not applicable. 

(d ) Fund raised on short term basis generally not been utilised for long term purpose except for 
financing of loss, if any. 

(e) As per information and explanation made available to us, the company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

(f) As per information and explanation made available to us, the company has not raised loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, associate or joint venture 
companies. 

x) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
including debt instruments. The company has not made any preferential al lotment or private 
placement of shares during the year under review. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

xi) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no fraud by.the 
Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during 
the year. 

xii) Paragraph 3(xii) of the Order related to Nidhi Company not applicable to the company. 

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

xiv) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. We are informed that the remedial measures are undertaken by the company. 

xv) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the company, opine that the company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and therefore, section 
192 comp I iance issue does not arise. 

Statutory Audit Report (Standalone) for the year ended 31 .03.2023 of Usha Matin Education & Solutions Ltd. 
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T_ELEPHONE : 2212-<i2SJ, 2212-8016 
FAX: 00-91-33-2212 7476 
WEBSITE : www.1:basu1l\dcompany.org 
E-MAIL : s.lahiri@gbasu.ht 

G. BAsu & co. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

BASU HOUSE 
ISTFLOOR 

3, CHOWRINGHEE APPROACH 
KOLKATA - 700 072 

xvi) (a)The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1 A of the RBI Act, 1934. 

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. 

(c) the company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulation made by the 
RBI. 

xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

xix) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, 
ageing and expected date of realization of financial assets and payments of financial liabilities , 
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention , which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on date of audit report that the company is not capable of meeting liabilities 

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within the period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. 

xx) Since the company does not attract section 135 of the Companies Act, payment on account of CSR 
does not arise. 

xxi) There is no comments from any companies, forming part of CFS, being the member of business 
combination in respective standalone accounts, so as to be referred under this law.' 

UD IN : .2 '.; 0 S ½ 7 L -8 (,C:, Z- <iJ p ~ 3~ C, .i-
Place : Kolkata 

Date : May 25, 2023 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

R.No~~ ~ 

~ MAITRA (f AUTta~tner 
M. No. 054728 
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Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, Plant & Equipment 
Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investment 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Other financial assets 
Income tax Assets 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(ii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 
(iii) Other finan~ial assets 

Current tax assets 
Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

Trade payables 
Provisions 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(iii) Others financial l !abilities 

Other Current Liabilities 
Provisions 

Total Current Llabllltles 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN; L31300W81997PLC085210 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

Note No. 

5 
6 

7 
8 
9 
10 

11 
11 
12 
13 

14 

15 
16 

17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

12,323.45 
50.01 

1,60,500.00 
657.17 
442.94 

7,196.12 

1,81, 169.69 

8.96 
419.92 
400.00 
180.55 
382.30 

1,391.73 

1,82,561.42 

26,415.81 
1,09,417.63 

1,35,833.44 

315. 34 
12,176.75 

12,492.09 

25,715.00 
7,337.48 
1,183.41 

34,235.89 

46,727.98 

1,82,561.42 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Policies 1-43 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Balance Sheet. 
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

12,434.95 
0.84 

1,60,500.00 
1,239.67 

439.36 
7,213.96 

1,81,828. 78 

5.21 
450.67 
450.00 
202.42 
291.15 

1,405.45 

1,83, 234. 23 

26,415.81 
1,08,890.56 

1,35,306.37 

1,282.25 
12,297.26 

13,579.51 

27,065.00 
5,949.09 
1,330.73 

3.53 

34,348.35 

47,927.86 

1,83,234.23 

(figures in , 000) 

For G.Basu & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Firm Registration Number: 301174E 

Chartered Accoun~ 

~~ r:3;1 
Membership No. 054728 1 DIN: 01666863 

c,{MA-r~ 
Gangotri Guha 
Director 

\ll)IIY · 2-30$"¼ t J---is~C,2C,&3%2.._}; . • . ._)\.y-y... 
Place: Kolkata ~ lndrajit B n opadh; ayf 
Date : 25th May 2023 Chief Financial Officer 

N,w•.t:f"'l>~ 
Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 00574665 

.S:U-M-~{u~_ 
Sumeet Kumar 
Company Secretary 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION AND SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: l31300WB1997PLC085210 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

REVENUES 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Cost 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Operating and Administrative Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit / (loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 
Exceptional Items 
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense: 

(i ) Current Tax · 

(ii) Previous Years 

Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 

Other Comprehensive Income 

-Items that will not be classified to Profit or Loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
(Comprising Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
loss for the year) 

Profit/ (Loss) per equity share 
[Nominal Value per share : Rs. 1) 
-Basic and Diluted in Rupees 

Note No. 

23 
24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Policies 1 -43 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date. 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

6,554.70 
1,100.29 

7,654.99 

2,300.74 
1,602.94 

7.07 
3,184.09 

7,094.84 

560.15 

560.15 

33.66 

526.49 

0.58 

527.07 

0.02 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

7,837.39 
777.37 

8,614.76 

2,735.44 
1,606.90 

3.98 
3,777.43 

8,123.75 

491,01 

491.01 

491.01 

491.01 

0.02 

(Figures in ~ 000) 

For G.Basu & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

~~~ 
~~:~M . <11 

• 

Place: Kolkata 
Date : 25th May 2023 

4~~'~ 
GangotrPGuha 
Director 
DIN: 01666863 

~ ~~;p-
Chief Financial Officer 

N ,1\1...1 • -tj; h 

Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 00574665 . 

S"UM-\ u-r ~ -
Sumeet Kumar 
Company Secretary 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Standalone Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

Particulars 

Cash Flow generated I {used) fn Operating Actfvftles 
Profit /(Loss) before tax 
Adjustment for: 
Re-measurement on gratuity 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Interest Income 

Lfabilitfes no longer required written back 
Bad Debts / Sundry balances written off { net) 
Loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets discarded 

finance Costs 
Income tax refund 
Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes in Working Capital : 
Decrease/(lricrea~e) In Current Assets 
- (Decrease) I Increase in Current liabilities 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid {Net) 
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

Cash flow used in Investing Activities 
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment 

Interest Received 
Net Cash used fn Investing ActMties 

Cash Flow used in Financing Activities 

Repayments of Loan from related parties 
Finance Costs 
Proceeds from loan from related parties 

Net Cash used in financing Activ1ties 

Net Increase /decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at t he beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

• Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprlse: 

Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 

• 1 n current account s 

For G.Basu & Company 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

utamMa~ 
rtner 

Membership No. 054728 

(Ff9ur@s fn 'f 000) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

{Audited) (Audited) 

560.15 491.01 

0.58 
7.07 3.98 

(58.89) (56.57) 

(1,024.16) (539.55) 
2.50 725.00 

107.75 (23.73) 
1,602.94 1,606.90 

(9.70) (1.68) 

1,188.24 2,205.36 

541.26 364.30 
1,174.29 ' (373.53) 

2,903.79 2,196.13 

6.06 1179.961 
2,909.85 2,016.17 

(52.50) 70.00 
68.58 58.25 
16.08 128.25 

(2,150.001 
{1,602.94) (1,833.30) 

800.00 

{2,952.94) {1,833.30) 

(27.01) 311.12 

455.88 144.76 
428.87 455.88 
(27.01) 311.12 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31 2023 March 31 2022 
8.96 5.21 

419.92 450.67 

4 28.87 455.88 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

c; (}.M-r-fu.,.1,- "'·'~" (j..., ~ 
Gangotrl Guha Vtnay Kumar Gupta 

Of rector 

DIN: 01666863 

Whole· Time Director 

DIN: 00574665 

U O 1.H - '2--~~-C,'}~e c; t-y~~'°L 
~-L-".JLIL _LC\--,{~ 5v,i-~ . 

....I "'C.,. .-, .. • 
1

ln~~J:JopadhyJy I Su meet Kumar Place: Kolkata 
Date : 25th May 2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Secre tary 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2022 

Changes in the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares issued 
Balance at the March 31, 2023 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings/ Capital 
(Accumulated Contribution by 

Deficit) Holding Company 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 
Share Premium Account 120.25 
Retained Earnings: 
Opening Balance 1,08,770.31 . 
(a) Profit/ (Loss) for the year 526.49 
(b) Other comprehensive income for the year 0.58 
Total comprehensive profit for the year (a+b) 527.07 . 
Closing Balance 1,09,297.38 . 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,09,417.63 . 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 
A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2021 

Changes in the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares issued 
Balance at the March 31, 2022 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings / Capital 
(Accumulated Contribution by 

Deficit) Holding Company 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 
Share Premium Account 120.25 
Retained Earnings: 
Opening Balance 1,08,279.30 
(a) Profit! (Loss) for the year 491.01 
(b) Other comprehensive Loss for the year 
Total comprehensive loss for the year (a+b) 491.01 . 
Closing Balance 1,08,770.31 . 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,08,890. 56 . 

For G.Basu & Company 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 

(Figures in " 000) 

Rs. 
26,415.81 

. 
26,415.81 

Rs. 
Total 

120.25 

1,08, 770.31 
526.49 

0.58 
527.07 

1,09,297.38 

1,09,417.63 

Rs. 
26,415.81 

26,415.81 

Rs. 
Total 

120.25 

1,08,279.30 
491.01 

491.01 
1,08,710.31 
1,08,890. 56 

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

:.~ ·( =::;' ::;c.·~ ;.::,~,~~: :L~~/~ :, 
art e - "/ Director Whole-Time Director 

Membership No. 054728 DIN: 01666863 DIN: 00574665 • 

Up/ ,v.... 2.'?,~ >"C, :}-~2a~ ,rft',,_ ~ 
i ,-J§ .:r~~·A . ...).t-., 

Place: Kolkata vT l~drajit Ba d opadh~~ 
~U,"11\u-r~ 
Sumeet Kumar 

Date : 25th May 2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 



USHA MARTIN EOUCA TION ft SOLUTIONS L TO. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 

(Figures in" 000) 
' -

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount 

As at 
Additions Disposal/ As at 

As at Charge for 
Disposal/ . 

As at 
As at 

As at 
ssets 

April 1 , 202 2 
During the Adjustments March 31, 

April 1, 2022 the year 
Adjustments 

March 3 1, 2023 
March 31, 

April 1, 2022 
year during the year 2023 during the year 2023 

Buildings 13,472.83 13,472.83 1,296.07 - - 1,296.07 12,176.76 12,176.76 
Plant and Equipment 2,052.08 120.67 1,931.41 2,034.63 J.74 133.58 1,904.79 26.62 17.45 
Vehicles 1,109.79 1,109.79 1,054.29 - - 1,054.29 55.50 55.51 
Furniture and Fixture 2,034.36 2,034.36 1,913.70 - 1,913.70 - - 120.66 
Office Equipment 603.02 603.02 538.45 - - 538.45 64.57 64.57 

Total [A] 19,272.08 . 2 , 155.03 17,117.05 6,837.14 3.74 2 ,047.28 4,793.60 12,323.45 12,434.95 

Previous Year 20,630.77 . 1,358.69 19,272.08 8,145.58 3.98 1,312.42 6,837. 14 12,434, 95 

6. Intangible Assets 
(Fi1ures in " 000) . -

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortisation Net Carrying Amount 

As at 
Additions Disposal/ As at 

As at Charge for 
Disposal/ 

As at 
As at 

As at 
ssets 

April 1, 2022 
During the Adjustments March 31, 

April 1, 2022 the year 
Adjustments 

March J 1, 2023 
March 31, 

April 1, 2022 
year during the year 2023 during the year 2023 

Computer Software 52.58 52.50 105 .08 51.74 l.33 . 55.07 50.01 0.84 

Total 52, 58 52,50 . 105.08 51. 74 3.33 . 55.07 50.01 0.84 
Previous Year 52.58 - . 52.58 51.74 - - 51.74 0.84 

,?-------.:" 
' 

y 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 
(f11ures In , thoUHnds uniH5. otherwise suited) 

7 ffnaoclal Assets 
lnve-stment: Non-Current 
Long-Tenn Trade and Unquoted lnviM;tments in Equity Instruments 

{Valuod at Cost) 
Usha Communlc.ations Technology Limited, BVI • 

Redtech Netork lndla Private Limited •• 
Usha M.artin Education Private Limited ... 

Aggregate • mount of Unquoted Investments 

· Due to prolonged non-availability of feedback called for a fair valuation, the relevant investment 
continued to be carried at cost . 
.. Private Company having common Director carried at cost . 
... Wholly owned subsidiary carried at cost. 

Trade receivables 

A. Billed 
Unsecured 
- Considered good 
- Considered good from related party 

• Considered credit Impaired 

Less-Provision for expected credit loss 

The net ca.rryins value of trade- receivables is considered a 
reasonable approx:fmatlon of fafr value. 

8. Unbflled 
Unbilled rec@iv.!!ble-s 
Total 

Ageing of trade rcce-fvablcs 

As at March 31, 2023 

As at March 31, As at March 31. 
2023 2022 

55,000.00 
1,00,000.00 

5,500.00 

1,60,500.00 

As at March 31 1 

2023 

657.17 

1,407.89 

1,407.89 

657.17 

657.17 

55,000.00 
1,00,000.00 

5,500.00 

1,60,500.00 

As at March 31, 
2022 

659.67 
580.00 

1,294.26 

1,294.26 

1,239.67 

1,239.67 

Outstanding for following periods. from due date of receipts 

Pa:rticulars Less than 6 More than 3 6 months• 
Unbilled dues 

months 
1 year 1•3years Total Not Due years 

(I) Undisputed Trade receivabl"' • considered 
good 657.17 657. 17 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have 
significant increase in credit risk 1,407.89 1,407.89 

(1fl) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 
lm~lred 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered 
good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 

Impaired 

less.; Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 
!Disputed • Undisputed) 1,407.89 1,407.89 

TOTAL 657.17 657.17 

As at March 31 2022 
outstanding tor tolloWlng penoos rrom aue aate of rece1pts 

Particulars Less than 6 6, months- More than 3 
Unbilled dues Hot Duo months 1 yc-"'r 1 · 3 y~a.r-s y~ar-s Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good 1,239.67 1,239.67 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivabl"' -which have 
significant increase in credit risk 1,294.26 1,294.26 

(tii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit 
Impaired 

(Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered ' 
good 

IV) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 

significant Increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit 
impaired 
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 

(Disputed • Undisputed) 1,294.26 1,294.26 

TOTAL 1,239.67 1,239.67 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

(F11ur.s 1n , u,ou"nCB uni.u ott1•r~u• stat•d) 

9 Other Non-Current Financial Assets 
Other Non-Current Assets 

• Excess of planned assets CNer obligatioo. 

• Refer Note no: 30 for actuarial valuation. 

10 Income Tax Assets 

TOS Receivable for prev:1ous year.i 

11 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash 011 hand 
Balances with Banks 

·In current accounts 

• There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period 

and prior periods. 

12 Other Current Financial Assets 
Security Deposits 

13 Current Tax Assets (Net ) 
TOS Receivable For 22-23 

1-4 Other Current Assets 
Prepaid Expenses 
Advances 
Balances with Government Authorities 
Advance/loans to Employees 

15 Equity Share Capital 
a) Authorized Share Capital 

200,000,000 (As at March 31 , 2022 : 
200,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 1 each 

1,000,000 10.75% Cumulative Re<teemable 

Preference SharM of Rs 50/ each 
(As at March 31 , 2022: 1,000,000, 10.7S'6 Cumulativc 

Preference Share-s of Rs. 50/· each 

b) Issued, Subscr1bed and Paid up Share C.tpftal 

26,415,811 EquitySharesofRe. 1/-each 
IAs at March 31,2012: 26,415,811 equity shares of Rs 1 each) 

c) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting: year 

As at March 31. As at March 31 , 
2023 2022 

442.94 439.36 
442.94 439. 36 

As at March 31. As at March 31, 
202l 2022 

7,196. IZ 7,213.96 
7,196.12 7,213.96 

As at March 31, As at March 31 , 

2023 2022 

8.96 5.21 

419.92 450.67 
428.88 455.88 

As at March 31, As at March 31 , 

2023 2022 

400.00 450.00 
400.00 450.00 

As at March 31 , As.atM.arch 31 , 
2023 2022 

180.SS 202.42 
180.55 202.42 

As at March 31 . As at March 31 , 

2023 2022 
27.87 28.87 

5.78 
354.4] 247.50 

15.00 
382.30 297.15 

As •t M•rch 31 , ~s •t March 31 , 
2023 2022 

2.00,000.00 2.00,000.00 
50,000.00 50,000.00 

2,50,000.00 Z,50,000.00 

26,415.81 26,415.81 
26,415.81 26,415.81 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

(f11ur.-s tn , thous11nds un1es,, otherwtsit nated) 

• Continuation of Note no : 15 

c) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

At the beginning of the year 
Issued during the year 
Outstanding at the end of the year 

Note: 

As at March 31, 2023 
No. of shares , 

26,415.81 26,415.8 

26,415.81 26,415.8 

Paid up cap!Ul includes 26,414,41 t Equity Shares issued as. fully paid-up in terms of the SCh('me ot Oemerger approved by the 
Hoo'ble Calcutta Hith Court. 

d) There has been no movement in number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the ~nd of reportini period. 

As at March 31, 2022 
No. of shares 

26,415.81 26,415.81 

26,415.81 26,415.81 

e) The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. ordinary equity shares having par value of Rs.. 1 per share. Each holder of ordinary shares Is entitled to one 
vote per share and equal right for dividend. No preference and/or restrictions on distlibution of dividend and repayment of capital is attached to the above shares. 

f) Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% as on balance sheet date. 

'II\ of Equity "of 
No. of Equity No. of Equity Equity 

Name of shareholder Shares as on Shares as on 
Shares as on March Shares as 

March 31 2023 
March 31 

31 2022 on March 
2023 

31 2022 

UMIL Shares a Stock BrokinQ Services Ltd. 30,75, 127 11.87 ]0,75, 127 11.88 
Usha Martin Ventures limited 13,20,076 5.10 7,63,291 2.89 
Usha 6reco ltd ll,77,627 1 3 .0◄ 33,77,627 13.05 
Praieev Investments limited 20,57,610 7.94 20,57,610 7.95 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

Other Equity 

Reseo:e-s & Surplus ,io.z, 120.z, 
Securities Premium Account ,zo.zs 120.25 

a) ReU1fned Um1ngs / (Accumulatoo Def1cft) 
Opening Balance 1.08, 770.31 1,08,279.30 
Net (loss)/ SurplUS for the year 526.49 491.01 
Closlns B•lance 1,09,296.80 1108,770.31 

b) Other compr~hensive inc~ 
Opening Bahmcc 
For the year 0.58 
Closing B.alance 0.58 

Total 1,09,417.63 1,08,890. 56 

As at March J1 , As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

Non-Current liabilities: 
Financial Liabilities 

Trade payables 

Outstanding dues to micro enterprtses and small enterprises 
Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 315.34 1,282.25 
Total payables 315. 34 1,282.25 
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• Continuation of Note no: 17 

A9elna of Trade Payables 
As at March 31 2023 Outstanding for follo'n'ing periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Not due 
less than 6 6 months• 1 

Less than 1 Year 1 ·2 Years 2·3 Years 
More than 3 

TOTAL months vear years 
(i) Micro and Small enterprises 

(ii) Disputed dues- Micro and 
Small enterolises 
(iii) Others 315.34 315.34 
(iv) Disputed dues- Others 
Total 315. 34 315.34 

As at March 31, 2022 Outstandina for followina periods from due date of payment 

Particulars Hot due 
l ess than b 

months 
6 months· 1 

vear 
less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Yea.rs 

(i) Micro and Small enterprises 
(ii) Disputed dues- Micro and 

Small enterprises 
(Iii) Others 
(Iv) Disputed dues- Others 
Total 

Otsclonire relating to suppliers registered under MSMEO Act bas~d on the information available with the Company: 

Particulars 

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year: 
Principal 

Interest 
TOTAL 

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tenns of section 16 of the ~D Act, a long with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 
year. 

(c) The amount of interest du@! .a.nd p.ayable for the period of delay in making paym~t (which have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the Interest speclrled 
under the MSNE.D Act. 

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 

(e) The amount of funh(!r interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
dlsallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the ~D Act. 

TOTAL 

18 Provisions 
Provision for lmpirernent of A-ssets 
Employee Benefits 

Current Uabillt1es: 
Ffnanciat Liabilitie5 

19 Borrowings 

Unsecured 
From Related Party 

• Inte r-Corporate Deposit 

• Interest rate '1 9. 25 " p.a fs charged . 

.. Borrowings repayable on demand. 

20 Other Current Financial Liabilities 
Interest on Unsecured Loan- Related Parties 
Dues payable to related parties 

More than 3 TOTAL 
years 

1,282.21 1,282.25 

1,282.25 1,282.25 

As at M.airch 31 , As at March 31 , 
2021 2022 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

12,176.75 12,176.7S 

120.51 
12,176.75 12.297.26 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

25,715.00 27,065.00 
25,715.00 27,065.00 

As at March 3 1, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

3,165.25 
4,172.23 
7,337.48 

3,165.25 
2,783.84 
5,949.09 
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21 Other Current Uabilltfe;s 
Statutory Dues Payable 
Capital Creditors 
Employee Related Liabilities 
Accrued Expenses 

22 Current Provisions 
Employee &!-n~flts 

23 •Revenue from Operations 
Income from Business 

• Refer Note no: 39 for ~egregatlon of revenue. 

2◄ Qther Income 

Income Tax Refund 
Income on Planned Assets (Gratuity) 
Other Non-Operating Income 
Liabilities no longer required written bad< 
Gain on Fixed Asset, sold/scrapped 

25 Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries and Bonus 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 

26 Finance Cost 

Bank Charges 
Other Borrowing Cost 
Others 

27 Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
Amortization on Intangible Assets 

28 Operating and Administrative Expenses 
Travelling and conveyance 
Communication 
M.afnlcmmcc expense$ 
Rent (lnclvdlni Lease Rent) 
ln$urance charges 
Computer Conwmables 
Professional and Consultancy Charges 
Legal and Secreterial 
Director Meeting Fees 
Payment to Auditors • 
LO$$ on Fixed Assets discarded (Net) 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation loss (Net) 
Bad Debts/Sundry Balances written off (Net/ 
Miscellaneoos Expenses 

•Payment to Auditors 
Statutory Auditors 

Statutory Audit fees 
Certification and other matters 

........___ 

As at March 3 1, /\sat March 31 , 
2023 2022 

48.05 41.13 
)2.14 
90.92 

1,135.36 1,166.54 
1,183.41 1,330.73 

As at March 31, As at March l1, 
2023 2022 

3.SJ 
3.Sl 

for the y~ar For the year 
ended March 31 ended March 31 

2023 2022 

6.554. 70 7,837.39 
6,554.70 7,837.39 

9.70 1.68 
58.89 56.57 
7.54 155.84 

1,024. 16 539.55 
23.73 

1. 100.29 777.37 

2,1◄3.87 2,560.47 
156.87 174,07 

2,)00.74 2 ,715.44 

29.30 34.40 
1,572.50 1,572.50 

1.14 
1,602.94 1,606.90 

3.74 3.98 
3.B 
7.07 3.98 

51 .73 216.94 
1 .45 118.50 

61.71jl 37.17 
◄0.68 40.68 
76.95 'I0.2• 

4. 1◄ 

1,364.89 1,197.95 
1,101.91 939.18 

68.00 60.00 
125.00 125.00 
107.75 
103.46 94.20 

2.50 725.00 
7798 128.43 

3,184.09 3,777.43 

100.00 100.00 
25.00 25.00 

125.00 125.00 
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29 Earnlns,s Per Share 

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding duri~ the year. 

Diluted earnings per share amounts ore calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during: the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be Issued on conver5ion of all the dilutive potential equity· shares into.equity shares. 

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit attributable to equity holders (A) 

Weighted average number of equity shares (8) 

Basic profit per share (A) / (B) (in INR)' 
Diluted profit per share (A) I (B) (In INR) 

• EPS calculated on profit before considering other comprehensive income, 

30 Employee Benefits 

A. Defined benefit plans 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

526.49 

26,415.81 

0.02 
0.02 

◄91,01 

26,415.81 

0.02 
0.02 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The scheme 1s funded by plan assets. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered at least five years 
of continuous service, to receive one-half month's ~tary for each year of completed 54!-l'VIC:c at th~ time of retirement/exit. 

(f) Actu• rtal assumptions 

Discount rate (per annum) 
Rate of increase in salary 
Retirement age (years) 

Mortality rate 

(ii) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation 

Present value of obligation at the beginnfng of the year 

Interest cost 
Past seryice cost 
Current service cost 

Curtailments 
Settlements 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain on obligations 

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 

(lfi) Expenses recognized In the Statement of profit and loss 
Current service cost 

Net interest (cost)/income 

Total (expen~)/income recognized in the Statement Profit and Loss 

(fv) Amount recognised In other comprtahensive income in respect of defined bonefft plan 

Actuarial gains arising from changes In demographic assumptions 
Actuarial jalns arising from changes in financial a$Sumptions 

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from expelience adjustments 
Actuarial lossl(gain) on plan assets 

(v) Changes In the fair value of planned c1ssets 

Pre-se11t value of planned asset at the beginning of th(!I year 
Contribution to the plan 

Withdrawal from the plan 
Investment income 

Actuarial gain on planned asse 

Fair value of planned asset as at the year end 

(vi) Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet: 
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 

Fair value of plan assets 

Net as.set recognized in Balance Sheet 

(vii) Investment detatls of plan assets .. 

UC 
• In respect of Employee gratui ty fund, composition of plan assets is not readily available from LIC 

(viii) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year 
The COf1lPany's best estimate of contribution during the next year 

A$ at March l 1, 
2023 

0.07 
0.05 

58 Yea~ 

100% of IALM 
2012-14 

401.88 
28.13 

27,76 

(158.67) 
(10.68) 
288.42 

27.76 
0,03 

(27.71) 

(4.02) 
(6.66) 

(10.68) 

841 .2◄ 

(158,67) 
58.89 

(10.10) 

731.36 

288.43 
731.37 
442.94 

100~ 

• Please note that since the scheme is managed on funded basis, the next year contribution is taken as nil for the current year 

(Ix) A qu.11ntitative sensitivity analysis for siRnificant assumption as at March 31,2023 is as shown below: 

As at March 31, 
2022 

0.07 
0.05 

58 Years 
100'!; of 1ALM 2012· 

14 

355.76 
24,55 

34,87 

(13.29) 
401.89 

34.87 
(0.0l) 

(34.84) 

(J.30) 
(9,99) 

(13.29) 

764,31 
25,00 

52.74 
(0.80) 

841.25 

401.88 
841.24 
439.36 

100. 
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Continuation of Note no: 30 

Impact on defined benefit obligation 
Discount rate 

1% increase 
1% decrease 

Rate of increase in salary 
1% increase 

1% decrease 

Rate of change in attrition rates 
100o increase 
1cm decrease 

31 lea~ where company fs a lessee 
The Company has entered into an Operating lease agreement with Mis Redtech Networ'k 1ndia private limited on May 1

1 
2022 

The lease has been taken for office premises approx 200 sq.ft., the rent pald for 'Wtiich is f 4,000 p.m. 
"'The compomy has not entered into any sale- or lease back transaction. 

32 Related party disclosure 

A. Names of related piirthts and description of relationship as identified and certifit>d by the Company: 

Subsidiary: 

Usha Martin Education Private Limited 

Private company sharing common director. 
M/s Redtech Network India private limited 

Company undor common control 
Jhawar Impact Ventures Private limited 
Usha Breco Lfmtted 

Jhawar Venture MJJnageme-nt Private limited 

Usha Martin Ventures Limited 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
Mr. Vinay Kumar Gupta (Whole Time Director DIN: 00574665) 
Mr, Prashant Jhawar (Chairman DIN: 00353020) 

Mrs. Gangotri Guha (Women director DIN: 01666863) 
Mr. Nipendra Kumar Shanna (Independent director DIN: 00076223) 
/w". Anil l<umarModl (Independent director DIN: 00076129) 
MT. Ntanoj Kumar Vijay (Independent director DIN: 00075792) 
Mr. lndraj!t 8andyopadhyay (Chief financial Officer) 

II<. Sumeet Kumar (Company Secretary) (Appointed w,e.f . 28/11/2022) 
Ms. Ritupama Oas (Company Secretary) (Resigned w.e.f 31 i01 i2022) 

8. Details of transactions with rolated party fn the ordinary course of business for the year ended: 

(i) Rent paid 

Mis Redtech Networl< India private limited (A private company havfng common director) 

(II) Remuneration 

Mr. lndrajit Bandyopadhyay (Chief financial offic~r) 
Mr. Vlnay Kumar Gupta (Whole time director) 

Mr. Sumeet Kumar (Company secretary) (Appointed w.e.L 28/11/2022) 

Ms. Ritupama Das (Company Secretary) (Resigned w.e.f lliOl/2022) 
(Iii) Interest paid 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private limited (Company under common control) 
(iv) Reimbursement of expenses received 

Usha Mart.in Education Private Limited (Subsidiary) 
Mis Redtech Networl< India pr1vate limited 

(v) Reimbursement of expenses paid 
M/$ Redtech Network India priv~le limited 

(vi) Consultancy Income 
Usha Breco Limited (Company under common control) 

(VII) coniutu1ncy IC'Xpt:'nit:' 
Usha Martin Education Private Limltec (Subsidiary! 

(vfli} Unsecured loan: 
a) Taken during tho yoar: 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limfted (Con,pany under common control) 
b) Repaid during the year: 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited (Company under common control) 

Jhawar Venture Management Private Limited (Company under common control) 
(Ix) Directors Slttlns fees paid 

Mr. Prashant Jhawar (Chairman DIN: 00353020) 
Mn. Gang:otr1 Guha (Women director DIN: 01666863) 

Mr. Nipendra Kumar Sharma (Independent director DIN: 00076223) 

Mr. Anil Kumar Modi (Independent director DIN: 00076129) 

263.28 370,73 
316.59 436,61 

317.67 437,99 
261.94 368.99 

291.Sl 405,44 
285.10 398.07 

As at March 31 , As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

40.68 

674.◄3 

1,250.00 
61.15 

1,572.50 

227.01 
130.75 

130.75 

1,600.00 

100.00 

800,00 

1,350.00 
800.00 

8.00 
18.00 
14.00 

10.00 

40.68 

909.15 

1.250.00 

356.JO 

1,572.50 

205.15 

155.84 

113.44 

2,200.00 

100.00 

8.00 
16.00 

16.00 

4.00 
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Continuation of Note no: 32 (b)(lx) 

MT. Manoj Kcmar Vijay (Independent director DIN:) 
(,:) 6-alances outstanding at year end 

Usha Martin Education Private Limited (Subsidiary) 
{a) Inter Corporate Deposits 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited (Company under common control, 
Jhawar Venwre Management Private Limited (Company ooder common control) 

(b ) Interest 

JhawarVenture Management Private Limited (Company lRlder common control) 
Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited (Company under common control) 

(c) Trade receivable 
Usha Manin Ventures Limited (Company under common control) 

S (-ve) figure represents amount payable 
# Figures are Inclusive of GST, 

18.00 16.00 

(4, 172.ZJ) (Z,783.84) 

{19.965.00) (20,515.00) 
(5. 750.00) (6,550.00) 

(1,750.00) (1,750.00) 
(1,415.25) (1,41 5.25) 

580.00 

• The transactions with related pc.1rties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstandlns balance:; at the period• 
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash or credit as per the terms of the arrangement. 

33 Sosment reportfns 

A . Identification of Sejments 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses, whose operating 
results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") to make decisfons for whtch c:hscrete financial information is available. 
The Company's chief operating decision maker is the Chairman&. Whole Time Director. The Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segment~ 
sepanit@ly ror the purpose of making decisions about resource alloc-ation and perfonnance assessment based on an analysfs. of various performance indicators by 
busfne,ss segments and geographic segments. 

B . Se-9.rnent revenue and expenses: 

It has been Identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the segment. 
The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost plus appropriate margins. 
lntersegment revenue and profit Is eliminated a t group level consolidation. 
Finance income earned and finance expense incurred are not allocated to individual segmMt and 

C . Segment asse ts and liabllltles: 

Segment assets and segment liabilities represent assets and liabilitfes of respective segments, however the assets and liabilities not identffiable or allocable on 
reasonable basis being related to enterprise as a whole have been grouped as unallocable. 1 

The accountin~ policies of the reportable- segments are same as that of Group's accounting policies described. 

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according 
to the relative contribution of each segment to the total common costs. 

" Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited ts engaged In educational management services and does not have any other segment of business. 

34 Fair values of financial assets and ffnanclal liabilities 

The fair value of other current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial liabilfties approximate the carryfng 
amounts because of the short term nature of these financial instruments. 

The amortfzed cost using effective Inte rest rate (EIR) of non-current financial as5oets consisting of security Is not slgnilicc1ntly different from the carryfng amounl. 

Financial a~ts that are neithe-r put d~ nor impaired include c&sh and cash equivalents. security deposits ind other flnaodal assets. 
F~fr v~luo hierarchy 

The followfng 1s the hierarchy for detiermfnfng c1nd disclosing the fafr value of ffn.ancial instruments by valuation technique: 
•level l - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in actfve markets for identical assets or liabihties. 

•Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within L~vel 1 that are observ11ble for the a~t or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly o.c. 
derived from prices). 

•level l - Inputs for the as~ts. or liabilities that are not base-d on observable market dna {unobservable inpug), 

Ho finat1dal .assets/liabilities have been v~lued using level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements. 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilitles measured at fair value on a recurring basis; 

Level 3 

Financial assets 
Measured at amortised cost 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other financial assets 

Total 

financial liabilities 
Me.asured at amortised cost 

Borrowings · long term including current maturities and short term 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

As at March 31 , 
2023 

657.17 

428.88 
400.00 

1,486.05 

25,71 5.00 
315.34 

7,337.◄8 

33,367.82 

As at March 31, 
2022 

1,239.67 
455.88 
450.00 

2,145.55 

27,065.00 
1,282.25 
5,949.09 

34,296.34 
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35 Financia l risk management object ives and policies 

The Company is exposed to various. financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management is 
coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term and shon term cash flows. The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for 
speculative purposes. 

A. Market Risk 

Market risk fs the risk that the fair value of future cash flows. of a financial instrument W11l fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk comprises 
t hree types of risk: intere$t r'ittc risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price r'bk and commodity risk. Financial Instruments affe<:ted by market rl~ 
include borrowfngs and derivative financial instruments. 

(i} foreign currency risk 

Foreign c urrency ris.k is the risk that the fair value or future cash flOW'S of a financia l instrument will fluctuate because of chan~es in foreisn e.lCchange rates. The 
Company's e-xposure lo the risk of changes 1n foreign exchange rates relates primarily to lhe Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense 1s 
denominated fn a diffe~nt currency from the Company's functionat currency). 

As at March 31 , k.atMarch 31, 
2023 2022 

Trade receivables 1,407.89 1,294.26 
Provisions 1,407.89 1,294.26 
Revenue from operations 4,954.70 5,637.39 

Sensitivity analysis 

Change tn Effect on profit 
USS rate 

2023 0.05 580. 73 
(0,05) (580.73) 

2022 0.05 1,616.42 
(0.05) (1,616.42) 

8. Credit Risk 

Credit risk ls t he r1sk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party to a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual obtrgatlons. Credit risk 
ar1ses principally f rom the Company·s receivables from deposits with landlords and othar statutory deposits with l"C1Ulatory a.gc-ncies and also aris6 from cash held 
with banks and financial institutions. The ma.ximum exposure to credit ri.sk is equal to the carrying value of the financial as~ts. Tho objective of managmg 
counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses fn financial assets. Tlle Ccmpany assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial 
position, past experience and other facto~. 

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and institutions and retaining sufficient balances in bank 
accounts rl!'quired to meet a month's operational costs. The Management reviews the bank accounts on rC!!j:Ular basis and fund drawdovms arc planned to ensure that 
there Is minimal surplus cash fn bank accooots. The Company does a proper financial and credfbfllty check on the landlords before taking any property on lease and 
hasn't had a single instance of non-refund of security deposit on vacating the leased property. The Comp.any also fn some cases ensure that the nonce period rentals 
a re adjusted against the security deposits and only differential, if any, is paid out thereby further mitigating the noo·realization risk. The Company does not foresee 
any credit risks on deposits with regulatory authorft!es. 

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31. 2023 and March 31.2022 is the canying amounts as 
mentioned in respective 'note-s. 

C. Liquid ity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be a ble to meet Its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensunng, 
as far as p~ible, that it will a lways have suffideot liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. 

The table below summarizeos the maturity profil• of th• Company'5 flna.n dill liabilities: 

Less than Within 12 
March l 1, 2023 J months months 1 to 5 year5 Total 

6orrowings 25,715 25,715.60 
Trade payables 315.34 315.J◄ 
Total 25,715 315.)4 26,030.34 

March 31,2022 
Borrowings 27,065 27,065.00 
Trade payables 1.282.25 1,282.25 
Total 27,065 1,282.25 28.347.25 
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36 Corporate social resp<;>nsibility expense 

The company ls not eligible for CSR expenditure as per Sec:tion 135 read with Schedule VU of the Companies Act 201 ). 

37 Capital management 

38 

39 

for the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes lssued equity capital, convertible preference s;hares, share premium and ;ill other equity 
reservl!S attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capilat management is to maximize the shareholder value and to ensure the 
Company's ability to continue as a gains coocem. 

The Company has not distributed any dMdcnd to its shareholders. The Company monito~ geartng ratfo r.e. total debt in proportion to its overall financing structure, 
i.e. equity and debt. Total debt comprises of non•current borrowing which represent>borrowings from related parties The Company manages the capital structure 
and makes adjmttnents to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristicl of the underty1ng assets. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or process.,s for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and M.lrch 31. 2022. 

As at 
March 31, As at March 31 , 

Accountin1 Ratios Numerator Denominator 2023 2022 Variance % 

Current ~tio (in times) Current assets Current liabilities 0.04 0.04 -1% 

Trade receivables Average 

wmover ratio (in times) Sales accounts 
rece1vabt~ 6.91 5.52 25% 

Average 
Net capftal turnover ratio »les working 

(in times) capital {0.20) (0.26) ·25% 
Debt service coverage Operating 

ratio (In times) profit Drot service (I) (0.32) (1.20) -74% 
Debt equity ratk> (fn times) Total debt Shareholder's equity 0.19 0.20 ·5% 
Net profit ratio (in%) EAT Net sales (if) 0.08 0.06 28% 

Reasons for variance >.= 25% 

(i). Lower scale of operations. 

(ii). lncreas., In other income 

Revenue from operations 

Indian Accounting Standard 1 t 5 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("Ind AS 11 5" ), establishes a framework for detennining whether, how much and when 
revenue is re<:Qinlsed and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing arid uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under 
Ind AS 11 S, revenue is recognised through a 5-step approach; 
i) Identify the contracts wfth customers; 
ii) Identify ~pa rate performance obligations in the contract; 
iii) Determine the transacl!oo prlce; 
iv) Allocate the transaction price to the perfonnance obligations; and 
v) Recognise revenue when a ~rformance obligation is satisfied 

Revenue from operations 
Domestic 
Foreign 
TOTAL 

As at March 31, 2023 

Training and 
consultancy 

1,600.00 
4,954.70 
6,554.70 

Other 
Operating 

Income 

As at March ll, 2022 

TraininR and 
consultancy 

2.200.00 
5,637.39 
7,837.39 

Otheor Operating 
Income 
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Continu.tlon of Note no ; 39 

8. Aueu 11nd llabilltfes related to contracts with customers 

TOTAL 

◄0 Continsent llablllties , 

As at March 31 , 2023 

Current 
Non· 

Current 

As at March 31, 2022 

Current Hon • Current 

The Company creates a provision whe-n there is pre-sent obligation a.s • re-sult of a past evfflt that probably requires an outflow of resources and • reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of oblltation. PloYISlonS are measured at the best estimate ol the expenditure required to settle the present obht•t,on It the Balance 
sheet date and are not discounted to fts prescot value. 

A disclosure for a contingent Habllity is made whoo there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that probably will not require an outflow of resources or 
where a reliable est imate of the obliga tion cannot be made. 

• The c~ny has not Identified any such contln1ent liability where there Is • probable chance for outflow. 

◄1 Disclosure of transactions with struck off companies 

The Company did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or SKtion 560 of Companies Act , l9S6 
during the financial year. 

◄2 Compliance with Schedule Ill 

(I) No tr•nsaction unden.• ke n Ot' le-gal proceedtn1 fnft laled a,walnst the company In r•s:pect of th• followfns: 

a) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 
b) 6enaml Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions ACt , 19BB and rules made thereunder 
(II) Ho cha'I• due for resisu.tlon has been lyine pending. lletther any charge re llnquuhed is pending surrender. 
(iii) Company does not have any borrOWUlg Ind u such the disclosures relatlns to borrowlnt do not apply 
(iv) Ho Income ~ rtalninj to any eorlier year has bcffl surrendered to fhcal department for usesment durint the year which wen, not accounted for 1n the books of 
the company fn eortier financial years. 

(v) There has beeo no deviation In respect of number of layers prescribed under section 2 (87) of Companies Act 201 3 read with Companies (Restriction on number 
of layers I Rules, 2017 
(vii) Ho scheme has been furnished to the authontles under section 230 to 237 of the Cornpan~ Act 2013 
(viii) The Company has neither lent nor received any fund from domestic or oversea. sources for dir«t or lndlrKt benefit of any penoo or entity 

[ix) The Code on Social Security 2020 ('the Code' ) rcleung to employee benefits, durln1 the employment and pm.t·employment, has received Presidential assent on 
September 28, 2020. The Code has been published In the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of l abour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on 
November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable Is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial Impact are also 
not yet Issued. 
The Company will a<sess the fmpact of the Code and will give appropriate Impact ,n the hnancial statements In the period in whfch, the Code becomes effective and 
the relat...t rules to determine the lln.ncial impact are publishe<I. 

◄3 All figures have been stated at , In thousands upto two decimals unless stated otherwise 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB 1997PLC085210 
Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(Figures in , thousands unless ot herwtse stated) 

General Information 

Usha Martin Education and Solutions Limited (formerly known as Usha Martin lnfotech Limited) was incorporated on August 
18th, 1997 under Comapnies Act 1956 (No. 1 of 1956) and the company is limited by Shares with CIN number: 

L31300WB1997PLC085Z10, listed on NSE (Registeration no: 532398) ,md BSE (Registration no: UMESLTD). The Company is 

domiciled in India having registered office at Godrej Waterside, Block DP-5, Tower-II ,Unit-1206, 12th floor Sector V Salt 
Lake Kolkata 700091, West Bengal. 

Authorisation of financial statements 

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 
25th May 2023. 

2 Basis of preparation 

The financial statement have been prepared on going concern basis is accordance with accounting principals generally 
accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis excepted for certain 
financial assets and financial labilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained In 
relevant accounting policies. Amount in the financial statement are presented tn ~ thousand's , upto two decimals,unless 
otherwise stated, 

(i) Statement of Compliance with IND AS: 

The Company prepares its Financial Statements to comply with the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. These 
Standalone financial statements includes Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including 
Other Comprehensive Income, Cash flows Statement and Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 
2023, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Information (together hereinafter referred to 
as "Ffnancial Statements"). 

(11) Basis of measurement: 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except certain financial 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value/amortized cost/discounted value as referred to in appropriate part of 
accounting policies. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company's operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule ·Ill of Division• II to the Companies Act, 2013. The company has determined the operating 
cycle as 12 months based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of raw materials for processing 
and their realisation in Cash and Cash Equivalents. 

(iii) Operati"i Cycle: 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current non-current 
classification of assets and liabili ties. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 
(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
(b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

(c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A 1/abflity is treated as current when: 
(a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

(c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 
All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC08521 0 
Notes forming part of financia l stateme nts. 
(Figures i ri , thousands unless otherwise stated) 

(iv) Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All amounts have 
been rounded to the nearest i thousands.unless otherwise indicated. 

M Use of estimates and j udgments 

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS reQuires the management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of 
revenue and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and 
assumptions used in the accompanying fi nancial statements are based upon the managements· evaluation of the relevant 
facts and circumstances as at t he date of financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates 
and underlying assumpt ions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in 
the year in which the estimates are revised and In any future years affected. 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarized 
below: 

(a) Current I Non • current classification: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set·out in the Act. Deferred tax assets and liabili ties are classified as non-current assets and non-current 
liabilities, as the case may be. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue from business basically comprises of providing consultancy services which is recognized at the fulfillment of 

service contract and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contracts are 
considered as fulfilled in accordance with the terms agreed with the respective customers. 

Interest income is recognized usi ng effective interest met hod. 

Dividend income is recognized at t he time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date. 

Other incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in the financial statements, except when there is uncertainty of 
collect ion. 

(c ) Property, Plant & equipment: 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost , net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ff 
any. These tangible assets are held for use in consultancy services or for administrative purposes. 

Cost comprises purchase cost, freight, duties, taxes and other expenses directly incidental to acquisi tion, bringing the 
asset to the location and installation i ncluding site restoration up to the time when t he asset is ready for intended use. 
Such costs also include borrowing cost if the recognition criteria are met. 

When a major inspection/repair occurs, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment 
as a replacement if t he recognition cri teria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous 
inspect ion/repair is derecognized. All other repair and maintenance are recognized 1n the Standalone Statement of Profit 
and Loss as incurred. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful lives of assets as specified in Schedule II to the 
Act except where the management, has estimated useful life of an asset supported by the technical assessment, external 
or internal, i.e., higher or lower from the indicative useful life given under Schedule II. The management believes that 
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of t he period over which the assets are likely to be 
used. 

Depreciat ion is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
Description Useful lives (upto) 

Leasehold land Over lease period 

Building 60 years 
Plant and machinery 15 years 

Furnit ure and fixtures 10 years 

Vehicles 8 years 

Off ice equipment 10 years 

t i 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Notes forming par t of financial statements. 

(Figures in , thousands unless otherwise stated) 

*Continuation of point (c) 

The residual value and useful life is reviewed annually and any deviation Is accounted for as a change in est imate. 

Components relevant to property, plant and equipment, where significant, are separately depreciated on straight line basis 
in terms of their life span assessed by technical evaluation in item specific context. 

For new projects, all direct expenses and direct overheads (excluding services of non-exclusive nature provided by 
employees In Company's regular payroll) are capitalized till the assets are ready for intended use 

During disposal of property, plant and equipment, any profit earned / toss sustained towards excess / shortfall of sale value 
vis-a-vis carrying cost of assets is accounted for in Standalone Statement of Profit and loss. 

(d) Intangible assets: 

Intangible assets acqui red separately are measured on initial recognition at cost of acquisition. The cost comprises of 
purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition for intended use. Intangible 
assets arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. In case of internally generated 
assets, measured at development cost subject to satisfaction of recognition criteria (Identifiability, control and future 
economic benefit) In accordance with Ind AS 38 "Intangible Assets'. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
Impairment loss, if any. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The 
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives Is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Amortization of intangible assets such as softwares is computed on a straight-line basis, at t he rates representing estimated 
usefu( life of up to 5 years. The brands and trademarks acquired as part of business combinations normally have a 

remaining legal life of not exceeding ten years but is renewable every ten years at nominal cost and is well established. 

(e) Impairment of non-financial assests: 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors. that an 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists. the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit (CGU) 
is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or CGU to which the asset belongs Is less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 

recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and loss. If, at the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously 
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the Standalone Statement of 
Profit and Loss. An asset is deemed impairable when recoverable value is less than its carrying cost and the difference 
between the two represents provisioning exigency. 

(f) Impairment of financial assets: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', the Company applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for 

measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the weighted-average of difference between 
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that t he 

Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default 
occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider: 

All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of t he assets; 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 
Trade Receivables: 
In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the ,1mplified approach of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', 
which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected 
credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 
Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(Figures fn " thousands unless otherwise stated) 

• Continuation of point (f) 

Other financial assets: 
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses ii the credit risk on those financial assets has increased 

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recogni tion, the Company 
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the 
lifetime expected credit losses. When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default 

occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a 
default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial 

asset as at the date of Initial recogni tion and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without 
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition . The Company assumes 
that the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is 
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

(8) Financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at 
fair value through profit or loss which are measured ini tially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities is described below: 

Non-derivative financial assets 
Subsequent measurement 

Financial assets carried at amortized cost 
A financial asset is measured at the amortizedcost, if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest ('SPPI ') on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate ('EIR') method. 
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries. 

Investments in equity i nstruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (' FVTPL'). 

For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an i rrevocable choice upon Initial recognition, on an instrument by 
instrument basis, to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') or fair value 

through profit or loss ('FVTPL'). Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to 
profit or loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are 
recognized in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of parl of the cost of the investment. 
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost and private company having common director is carried at cost as well. 

Invest ments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss l'FVTPL'). 
For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an inst rument by 
i nstrument basis, to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') or fair value 
through profit or loss ('FVTPL') . Amounts presented in other comprehensive 

Investments In equity Instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL'). 
For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition , on an instrument by 
instrument basis, to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income ('MOCI') or fair value 
through profit or loss ['MPL'). 
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Debt instruments 

Debt Instruments are infttally measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') or 
fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL') till de-recognition on the basis of: 

f. the entity's business model for managing the financial assets; and 

iL The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 
(a) Measured at amortized cost 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of pri ncipal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method less i mpairment, i f any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized 
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both, selling financial assets and 

collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair 

value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income 

( 'OCI'). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from 
the equity to 'other income ' in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(C ) Measured at fair value through profit 8: loss 

A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. Such financial assets are 
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as 
'other income' in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognft1on of financial assets 

A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from t he asset have expired 
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Non- derivative financial liabilities 
Sub sequent mec1surement 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability Is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substant ially different terms or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Derivative financial Inst ruments 
The Company holds aertvative financial instruments In the form Of future contracts to mfttgate the risk of changes in 
exchange rates on foreign currency exposure. The counterpar ty for these contracts are scheduled commercial 
banks/regulated brokerage firms. Although these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they do not 

qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' and consequently are categorized as financi-al assets , 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The resulting exchange gain or loss is included in other 
income/expenses and attributable transaction costs are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when 
incurred. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it 

incurs because the specified party fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee fs issued at fair value, 

adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is 
measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined .is per impairment requirements of Ind AS 
109 'Financial Instruments' and the amount recognized less cumulanve amortization. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial li abilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet if there 

is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an i ntention to settle on a net basis, to 

realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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(h) Fair value of measurement 

The Company measures financial instrument s, such as, derivatives at fair value at each Standalone Balance Sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a l iability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement 1s based on the presumption that the 

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
• In the absence of a princi pal market, m the most advantageous market for the asset or liabili ty. 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability. assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement or a non-financial asset takes into account a market part1c1pant's ability to generate econom,c 
benefits by using the asset In its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in i ts highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the 
use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which t he lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for whfch the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement i s 
unobservable. 

For assets and liability that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level 
input that is sienificant to Lhe fair value measuremenc as a whole) at. t11e e,"ld o r each reportmg penoa. 

The company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as 
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measure at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement , such as 
assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. 

(i) Employee benefits: 

Liabilities fn respect of employee benefits to employees are provided for as follows: 

Current employee benefit 

• Current employee benefits 

a. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of 

employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be incurred when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee dues payable in the Standalone Balance Sheet. 
b. Employees' State Insurance ('ESI') JS provided on the basis of actual liability accrued and paid to authorities. 

c. The Company has adopted a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating In 
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences Is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an 
independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to 
be paid I availed as a result or the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non­
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur. 

d. Expense in respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period 
during which services are rendered by the employee 

Post seperatfon employee benefit plan 

a . Defined benefit plan 

Post separation benefits of Directors are accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 19 

'Employee Benefi ts' 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 
Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(Figures tn ~ thousands unless otherwise stated) 

•continuat ion of point (I) 

Gratuity liability accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'. Liability 

recognized in the Standalone Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 
the end of each reporti ng period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
an i ndependent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of defined benefit is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yield at the end of each reporting period on 

government bonds that have terms approximate to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated 
by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plon assets. This 
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company contributes its share of contribution to Employees' Provident Fund Scheme administered by a separate trust 

with its obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, in trust fund arising on account of difference between the return on 
Investments of the trust and the interest rate on provident fund dues notified periodically by the Central Government and 
any expected loss in investment. Liability recognized in the Standalone Balance Sheet in respect of Dabur India E.P.F trust 
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of each reporting period less the fair value of plan assets 
on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gain / loss pertaining to gratuity, post separation benefits and PF trust are accounted for as OCI. All remaining 
components of costs are accounted for In Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer Note:30 

(i) Provisions, contingent If ability and contingent assets: 

• Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events and 

when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at 

each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, 
where the time value of money Is material. 
• Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

a. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or 
b. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

• Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related 
asset Is recognized 

(k) Foreign currency transaction and t ranslations: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency. by applying the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding 
at the balance sheet date are converted lo functional currency usi ng the closing rate. Non-monetary Items denominated in 
a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from 
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in 
which they arise. 

(1 j Operation segments: 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker ('CODM'j of the Company. The COOM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance or 
the operating segments of the Company. 

(m) Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per share, the net profit for the period attributed to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all potentially dilutive equity shares. 
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(n) Borrowing Cost: 

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and also include 
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the same. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition and/ or construct ion of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to 

complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Standalone Statement of 
Profit and Loss as incurred. 

(o) Cash & Cash equivalent: 

For the purpose of the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cheques in hand, 
bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity ,s three months or less and other short-term highly 
liquid investments net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are considered an integral part of 
the Company's cash mana&ement. 

(p) Taxes 

Tax expense recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax 

except the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Current tax is determined as the tax 
payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current 
income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). 

(q) Signtf1cant management Judgement In applying accounting poUctes and estimates uncertainty: 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires t he management to make j udgements, estimatesand 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities: 

• Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets 

requires, the management to make an assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

• Recoverability of advanc~s / receivables 

At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expected life, the management assesses the 
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. 

• Defined benefit obU~ation ('DBO') Management's ~timatP of the 080 1s: b3sed on a. number of underlying as.sumptions 
such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary Increases. Variation in these 
assumptions may significantly i mpact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. 

• Provisions 

At each balance sheet date basis t he management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the 
requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However , the actual future outcome may be 
different from this judgement. 

• Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, (refer note 

40). By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. 

The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant 
judgments by management and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

• Fair value measurements 
Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes 
are not available) and share based payments. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how 
market participants would price the instrument. The Company engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the 
valuation. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets, 
liabilities and share based payments are disclosed in the notes to standalone financial statements. 

• Useful lives of depreciable / amortizable assets Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable / 
amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates 
relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(Flaures In , thousands unless otherwise stated) 

4 Recent pronouncements In IND AS notified effective from Apri l 1st 2023. 

IND AS: 12 Deferred Taxes 

Paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes exempt an entity from recognising a deferred tax asset 0< liability in 

particular circumstances. Despite this exemption, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, a first-time adopter shall recognise a • 
deferred tax asset-to the extent that it rs probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised-and a deferred tax hab1hty for all deductible and taxable temporary differences 
associated with: (a) right-of-use assets and lease hab1ht1es: and 
(b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the correspondmg amounts reco11nised as part of the cost of the 
reldlc:c.1 a~sel." 

IND AS: 107 Financial Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements, an entity disclose-s material accountmg pohcy mforrnat1on. Information about the 
measurement basis (or bases) for financial instruments used in preparing the financial statements is expected to be 
material accounting policy Information. 

IND AS: 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 

Ind AS 1 also requires entities to disclose, a long with material accounting policy information or other notes, the 

judgements, apart from those involvma estimations, that management has made m the process of applying the entity's 
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised ,n the financial statements. 

• Aforesaid amendment do not have material impact In the financia l statements prepared for the current year. 

/ 
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TO THE MEMBERS OF USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of USHA MARTIN EDUCATION 

& SOLUTIONS LIMITED and its subsidiary, which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 3JS1 March, 2023, 

Changes in Equity, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 

summary of the significant accounting pol icies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 20 I 3 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 

of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgements and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express our opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of 

the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consol idated financia l statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

Statutory Audit Report for the year ended 31.03.2023 of Usha Martin Education & Solutions Ltd. (Consolidated) 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 

the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to 

the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company' s 

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 31 51 March, 2023 and its Profit and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143( I 0) 

of the Companies Act, 20 I 3. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in. the 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfi I led 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the stand alone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 

opinion on these matters. 
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Sr. 
No. 
1 

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, Principal Audit Procedures 

presentation and disclosures of revenues and We assessed the Company' s process to 

other related balances in view of adoption of Ind- identify the impact of adoption of the new 

AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with revenue accounting standard. 

Customers" (new revenue accounting standard) 

The application of the new revenue accounting 

Our audit approach consisted testing of the 

design and operating effectiveness of the 

internal controls and substantive testing as 
standard involves certain key judgements relating follows: 

to identification of distinct performance 

• Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to implementation of the new 
revenue accounting standard. 

obligations, determination of transaction price of 

the identified performance obligations, the 

appropriateness of the basis used to measure 

revenue recognized over a period. Addit ionally, • Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts, and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the internal contro I, 
relating to identification of the distinct 
performance obligations and 
determination of transaction price. We 
carried out a combination of procedures 
involving enquiry and observation. re­
performance and inspection of evidence in 
respect of operation of these controls. 

new revenue accounting standard contains 

disclosures which involves collation of 

information in respect of disaggregated revenue 

and periods over which the remaining 

performance obligations will be sat isfied 

subsequent to the balance sheet date. 

• Tested the relevant information 
technology systems' access and change 
management controls relating to contracts 
and related information used in recording 
and disclosing revenue in accordance with 
the new revenue accounting standard. 

• Selected a sample of continuing and new 
contracts and performed the following 
procedures: 

• Read, analyzed and identified the distinct 
performance obligations 111 these 
contracts. 

Statutory Audit Report for the year ended 31.03.2023 of Usha Martin Education & Solutions Ltd. (Consolidated) 
Page 3 of 12 



TELEPHONE : 2212-6253, 2212-8016 
FAX: 00-91-33-2212 7476 
WEBSITE : www.gbasuandcompany.org 
E-MAIL : s.lahiri@gbasu.in 

G. BASU & CO. 
CIIARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

BASU HOUSE 
ISTFLOOR 

J, CHOWRINGHEE APPROACII 
KOLKATA- 700 071 

• Compared these performance 
obligations with that identified and 
recorded by the Company. 

• Considered the terms of the contracts 
to determine the transaction price 
including any variable consideration 
to verify the transaction price used to 
compute revenue and to test the basis 
of estimation of the variable 
consideration. 

• Samples in respect of revenue 
recorded for time and material 
contracts were tested using a 
combination of approved time sheets 
including customer acceptances, 
subsequent invoicing and historical 
trend of collections and disputes. 

• In respect of samples relating to fixed_ 
price contracts, progress towards 
satisfaction of performance obligation 
used to compute recorded revenue was 
verified with actual and estimated 
efforts from the time recording and 
budgeting systems. We also tested the 
access and change management 
controls relating to these systems. 

• Sample of revenues disaggregated by 
type and service offerings was tested 
with the performance obligations 
specified in the underlying contracts. 

• Performed analytical procedures for 
reasonableness of revenues disclosed 
by type and service offerings. 

• We reviewed the collation of 
information and the logic of the report 
generated from the budgeting system 
used to prepare the disclosure relating 
to the periods over which the 
remaining performance obligations 
will be satisfied subsequent to the 
balance sheet date. 
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2. Accuracy of revenues and onerous obligations Principal Audit Procedures 
in respect of fixed price contracts involves 
critical estimates 

Our audit approach was a combination of test 
of internal controls and substantive 
procedures which included the following: 

Estimated effort is a critical estimate to determine 
revenues and liability for onerous obligations. 
This estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as it 
requires consideration of progress of the contract, 
efforts incurred till date and efforts required to • 
complete the remaining contract performance 
obi igations. 

Evaluated the design of internal controls 
relating to recording of efforts incurred 
and estimation of efforts required to 
complete the performance obligations. 

Refer Notes to the Financial Statements 
• Tested the access and application controls 

pertaining to time recording, allocation 
and budgeting systems which prevents 
unauthorized changes to recording of 
efforts incurred. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and· 
through inspection of evidence of 
performance of these controls, tested the 
operating effectiveness of the internal 
controls relating to efforts incurred and 
estimated. 

• Selected a sample of contracts and 
performed a retrospective review of 
efforts incurred with estimated efforts to 
identify significant variations and verify 
whether those variations have been 
considered in estimating the remaining 
efforts to complete the contract. 

• Reviewed a sample of contracts with 
unbilled revenues to identify possible 
delays in achieving milestones, which 
require change in estimated efforts to 
complete the remaining performance 
obligations. 

• Performed analytical procedures and test 
of details for reasonableness of incurred 
and estimated efforts. 
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3. 

4. 

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions & Principal Audit Procedures 
Recoverability of advance tax. 
The Company has material uncertain tax positions 
including matters under dispute which involves 
significant judgment to determine the possible 
outcome of these disputes. 

Refer Notes on Accounts to the Financial 
Statements 

Obtained details of completed tax assessments 
and demands for the prior periods from 
management. Involvement of our internal 
experts hardly found anything to chal lenge the 
management's underlying assumptions in 

estimating the tax provision and 
recoverability and advance tax. 

Valuation of investments and impainnent thereof: Held at cost. 

(a) Non Current Investments in Body Corporate 

Refer Notes on Accounts to the Financial 
Statements 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of Section I 43(ii) of the Act, we give in the Annexure-2, a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, as applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for lhe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 

financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of.the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as il appears 

from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consol idated statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as 

on 31 51 March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding company and the 

report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of the 

directors is disqualified as on 31 si March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 

Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(t) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such control, 

refer to our separate report in Annexure I 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audits and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i) The Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India does not have any pending 

litigations which would impact its financial position. 

ii) The Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India has not entered into long-term 

contracts or derivative contracts. 

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv) (a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either borrowed funds or share 

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company or in any other persons 

or entities including foreign entities ( intermediaries ) with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise. that the intcrmediar:, ~hall . direct I:, or indir\.'ctl:, k11d Pr 

invest in other person or entities identified in any manner \1hatsocvcr ( .. ult1mati.: 

beneficiaries") by or on behalfofthe Company or provide any guarantee, security or the 

like on behalf of the ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been received by the company from any person or entities, including fore ign 

entities ( "Funding parties"), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

Statutory Audit Report for the year ended 31.03.2023 of Usha Martin Education & Solutions Ltd. (Consolidated) 
Page 7 of 12 



T E LEPHONE : 1111-6253, 2212-301b 
FAX: 00-91-JJ-22117476 G. BASU & Co. 

BASU HOUSE 
ISTFLOOR 

3, CIIOWRINGHEE APPROACH 
KOLKATA- 700 071 

WEBSITE : www.gbasuandcompany.org CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
E-MAIL : s.lahiri@gbasu.111 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever('· ultimate beneficiaries") by or on behalf 

of the funding parties or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

ultimate beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the procedure performed that have been considered reasonable and 

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule Jl(e ) contain any 

material misstatement. 

v) The Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India did not declare or pay any 

dividend during the year. 

UDIN: .2 30 St, 72 g 84 Z-GrPS S150 
Place : Kolkata 

For G. BASU & CO. 

c:~•t~~ 
~ MAITRA 

Partner 
M. No. 054728 

Date : May 25, 2023 
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ANNEXURE-1 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act"). 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of USHA MARTIN EDUCATION 

& SOLUTIONS LIMITED ("the Company") as on 31 st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAI). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operation effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Audit in!! 

issued by !CAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143( I 0) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Fi nancial 

Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
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financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining on understanding of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that ( I) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly retlect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 

authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Owing to the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 

fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 

at 31 st March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place : Kolkata 

Date : May 25, 2023 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

R. No. 301174E 

~~~~ 
& uTt~.-~AITRA 

Partner 
M. No. 054728 
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ANNEXURE-2 

R E: USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

This is referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report of even date on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements 

Clause (xxi) : There is no comments from any companies, forming part of CFS, being the member 

of business combination in respective standalone accounts, so as to be referred under this law.' 

For G. BASU & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

ODIN: 2..30 <,~;t2~ B(z'Z-Gt f..S S1c;-() 
Place Kolkata 

R No. 301174~ ~ 

TRA 

Date May 25, 2023 
Partner 

M. No. 054728 
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Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Property, Plant & Equipment 
Intangible Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Investment 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Other financial assets 
Income tax Assets 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Current Assets 
Financial Assets 

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(ii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 
(iii) Other financial assets 

Current tax assets 
Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity · 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabflities 
Financial Liabilities 

Trade payables 
Provisions 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(iii) Others financial liabilities 

Other Current Liabilities 
Provisions 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 

Note No. 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 
10 

11 
11 
12 
13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

12,323.45 
50.01 

1,55,000.00 
657.17 
442.94 

8,083.10 

1, 76,556.67 

14.45 

463.83 
5,805.00 

185.55 
889.79 

7,358.62 

1,83, 915. 29 

26,415.81 
1,14,815.80 

1,41,231.61 

358.97 
12,176.75 

12,535.72 

25,715.00 
3,165.25 
1,267.71 

30,147.96 

42,683.68 

1,83,915.29 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

12,434.95 
0.84 

1,55,000.00 
1,239.67 

439.36 
8,170.86 

1,77, 285.68 

7.70 

488.16 
7,079.56 

219.42 
780.91 

8,575.75 

1,85,861.43 

26,415.81 
1, 14,182.40 

1,40,598.21 

1,312.27 
12,297.26 

13,609.53 

27,065.00 
3,165.25 
1,419.91 

3.53 

31,653.69 

45,263.22 

1,85,861.43 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Policies 1-43 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Balance Sheet. 
This is the Balance. Sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

For G.Basu & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

~(MA_~· ~ 

Gangotri Guha Vinay Kumar Gupta 
ooec~ w~~~~~~ 

Membership No. 054728 DIN: 01666863 DIN: 00574665 

(Figure, in ~ 000) 

LJ.[)1,-1:2.1o5~72.SI\Gi'2...~tS'S750 q \ _:_·/LIL.. LG~~~ ~ \..<2hr~ 
Place: Kolkata ~ T ' ., l~;l~J;'yopadtlva/ · Sumeet Kumar _, ----.. 

Date : 25th May 2023 Chief financial Officer Company Secretary 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION AND SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

REVENUES 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Cost 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Operating and Administrative Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit/ (Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax 
Exceptional Items 
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense: 

(i) Current Tax 
(ii) Previous Years 

Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation 

Other Comprehensive Income 
·Items that will not be classified to Profit or Loss 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 
(Comprising Profit/(Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
loss for the year) 

Profit/ (Loss) per equity share 
[Nominal Value per share : Rs. 1] 
·Basic and Diluted in Rupees 

Note No. 

23 
24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

29 

Notes on Account and Significant Accounting Policies 1 ·43 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even 

(Figures in '{ 000) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

6,554.70 7,837.39 

1,551.82 1,229.23 

8,106.52 9,066.62 

2,530.04 2,916.53 
1,606.18 1,608.33 

7.07 3.98 
3,178.53 3,894.78 

7,321.82 8,423.62 

784. 70 643.00 

784.70 643.00 
' 

50.00 38.00 
101.88 

632.82 605.00 

0.58 

633.40 605.00 

0.02 0.02 

For G.Basu & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

-nA-\; G.~~~ 
W..~IA> Gangotrl Guha 

r Director 
Membership No. 054728 DIN: 01666863 

\J~lr\: 2.1oS'1128 fl.:,~ '2..~f~ S 7t,\'t~ ,_ "~~vA~ 
Place: Kolkata i-11 · .,;d;~jit-eli~JopadhJy r 
Date : 25th May 2023 Chief Financial Officer 

'Y. w ,..P.1, ..... 
Vinay, Kuma:Jupta 
Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 00574665 

~tU.t--ku.,wD::\ 
Sumeet Kumar 
Company Secretary 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS L TO. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31 , 2023 

Particulars 

Cash Flow generated I (used) In Operating Activities 
Profit /(Loss) before tax 
Adjustment for: 
Re-measurement on gratuity 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Interest Income 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Bad Debts I Sundry balances written off (net) 
Loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets discarded 
Finance Costs 
Income tax refund 
Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes in Working Capital : 

Oecreasel(lncrease) In Current Assets 
- (Decrease)/ Increase in Current liabilities 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

Cash Flow used in Investing Activities 
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment 
Interest Received 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 

Cash Flow used in Financing Activities 
Repayments of Loan from related parties 
Finance Costs 
Proceeds from loan from related parties 

Net Cash used In Financing Activities 

Net increase /decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

• Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

For G.Basu & Company 
Firm Registration Number: 301174E 
Chartered Accountants 

artner 
Membership No. 054728 \ 

Year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(Aucl1t@d) 

784.70 

0.58 
7.07 

(508.89) 
(1,024.16) 

3.61 
107.75 

1,606.18 
(11. 23) 

965.60 

516.43 
(205.36) 

1,276.67 

(30.25) 
1,246.42 

(52 .50) 
1,744.68 

1,692.18 

(2. 150.00) 
(1,606.18) 

800.00 
(2,956.18) 

(17.58) 

495.86 
478.28 

(17.58) 

Year ended 
March 31 2023 

14.45 

463.83 

478.28 

(Figures in, 000) 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022 

(Audited) 

643.00 

3.98 
(506.57) 
(539.55) 
775.53 
(23.73) 

1,608.33 
(3.54) 

1,957.44 

333.15 
(77.24) 

2,213.35 

(219.78) 
1,993.57 

70.00 
105.11 

175.11 

(1,834.73) 

( 1,834.72) 

333.97 

161.89 
495.86 

333.97 

Year ended 
March 31 2022 

7.70 

488.16 

495.86 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Gangotri Guha 

ry. ""-1 .A"'l-"-
Vi nay Kumard;a 

Director Whole· Time Director 
DIN: 01666863 DIN: 00574665 

Ub1N:210S¼c2i~~'2..6'($ S~So 

Place: Kolkata j~0lndrajlt Ba f y adhy!r'r:meet ~ 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Date : 25th May 2023 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2022 
Changes in the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares issued 

Balance at the March 31, 2023 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings / Capital 
(Accumulated Deficit) Contribution by 

Holding Company 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 
Share Premium Account 120.25 

Retained Earnings: 
Opening Balance 1, 14,062.15 
(a) Profit/ (Loss) for the year 632.82 

(b) Other comprehensive income for the year 0.58 
Total comprehensive profit for the year (a+b) 633.40 . 
Closing Balance 1, 14,695.55 -
Balance as at March 31 , 2023 1, 14,815.80 . 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 
A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance at the April 1, 2021 

Changes in the Equity Share Capital during the year on account of shares issued 

Balance at the March 31, 2022 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings / Capital 
(Accumulated Deficit) Contribution by 

Holding Company 

Balance as at April 1, 2021 
Share Premium Account 120.25 
Retained Earnings: 
Opening Balance 1, 13,457.15 
(a) Profit/ (Loss) for the year 605.00 

(b) Other comprehensive Loss for the year 

Total comprehensive loss for the year (a+b) 605.00 . 
Closing Balance 1,14,062.15 -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,14,182.40 . 

For G.Basu & Company 

Firm Regi~tration Number: 301174E 

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Figure s in , 000) 

Rs. 
26,415.81 

26,415.81 

Rs. 

Total 

120.25 

1, 14,062.15 

632.82 

0.58 

633.40 
1, 14,695.55 
1, 14,815.80 

Rs 

26,415.81 
. 

26,415.81 

Rs 
Total 

120.25 

1, 13,457.15 
605.00 

605.00 
1,14,062.15 
1, 14,182.40 

c;°"""~~ 
Ga~ gotri Guha 

V,'k~--1,h­
vtnay Kumar Gupta #i~~ 

Partner Director Whole-Time Director 

Membership No. 054728 I DIN: 01666863 DIN: 00574665 

Vl>1r-t:2"3ot;Lf1~88Gi2.C..(551~() l"1 t , 
J~~;/1.. ~A£\,_j\-.,,-.iv-- >-LVV\~l,(_~ ~ 

Place: Kolkata • r I l~d~aji~ ·B~nl~bpadhyl: r Sumeet Kumar ..:.....,_.;--

Date : 25th May 2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION ft SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to a nd forming part of the Financial Statements 

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 

(Figures in ~ 000) 
' -

Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount 

As at 
Additions Disposal/ As at 

As at Charge for 
Disposal/ As at 

ssets During the Adjustments March 31, Adjustments 
As at 

March 31, 
As at 

April 1, 2022 
year during the year 2023 

April 1, 2022 the year 
duri ng the year 

March 31, 2023 
2023 

April 1, 2022 

Buildings 13,472.83 - - 13,472.83 1,296.07 - 1,296.07 12,176.76 12,176.76 
Plant and Equipment 2,052.08 - 120.67 1,931.41 2,034.63 3.74 133.58 1,904.79 26.62 17.45 
Vehicles 1,109.79 1,109.79 1,054.29 - 1,054.29 55.50 55.51 
Furniture and Fixture 2,034.36 2,034.36 - 1,913.70 1,913.70 - - 120.66 
Office Equipment 603.02 603.02 538.45 - 538.45 64.57 64.57 

Total [A] 19,272.08 . 2,155.03 17,117.05 6,837.14 3.74 2,047.28 4,793.60 12,323.45 12,434.95 

Previous Year 20,630.77 - 1,358.69 19,272.08 8, 145.58 3.98 1,312.42 6,837.14 12,434.95 

6. Intangible Assets 

(~igures_!n ~ 000) -
Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortisation Net Carrying Amount 

As at 
Additions Disposal/ As at 

Charge for 
Disposal/ 

As at 
As at 

ssets During the Adjustments March 31, 
As at 

Adj ustments March 31, 
As at 

April 1, 2022 
year during the year 2023 

April 1, 2022 the year 
during the year 

March 31, 2023 
2023 

April 1, 2022 

Computer Software 52.58 52.50 105.08 51.74 3.33 . 55.07 50.01 0.84 

Total 52.58 52.50 . 105.08 51.74 3.33 . 55.07 50.01 0.84 
Previous Year 52.58 . . 52.58 51.74 . . 51,74 0.84 

\ '?--



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

7 Financial Assets 

lnve-stment : Non-Current 

Long-Term Trade and Unquoted Investments in Equity lnslrument.s 
(Valued at Cost) 

Usha Communications Technology limited, BVI • 
Redtech Netork India Prfvate Limited .. 

Aprea.ate amount of Unquoted Investments 

AS at March Jl, As at March J1, 

2023 2022 

SS,000.00 
1,00,000.00 

1,55,000.00 

SS,000.00 
1,00,000.00 

1,SS,000.00 

• Due to prolonged non•availability of feedlnlck called for a fair velut,Uon, the relevant investment 
continued to be carded at cost. 
0 Private Company having common Dlrec-tor c;irrled nl cost. 

8 Tr-ade recoiv.ablos 

A. BUled 
Unsecured 

• Considered good 
- Considered good from related party 
• Considered credit impaired 

Less·ProviSJon for expected credit loss 

The net canying value of trade receivablos is considered a reasonable 
app.-oximation of fair value. 

B. Unbilled 
Unbilled receivables 
Total 

Aaefn11 of trade receivables 

As. at March 31 2023 

Particulars 

II} Undisputed Trade recewables - considered 
sood 

(ii) Undisputed Traide Receivables -which haiv@ 
significant increase in C(edft risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable, • credit 
impaired 

{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables-considered 
8()0<1 
{v) Disputed Trade Recefvablc-s • which have 

sfgnifica.nt increase in credit risk 
jvi) Disputed Trade Rec.efvablcs • credit 

Impaired 
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debu 

(Disputed • UndisptJted) 
TOTAL 

Ant March 31 2022 

Particutm 

ji) Undisputed Trade recewabl@s - cofmdered 
good 
jlf) Undisputed I rade Rec.einblcs -wh1ch have 

s.lgnmcanl incr-ease lo credit nsk 

11ft) Undisputed Trade Receivoble-s - credit 
impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade R@!Ce-fvabtes-cQnsldered 

8()0<1 
(vl DfS1>uled Trade Receivable-s • which have 

significant Increase in credit risk 

{vil Disputed Trade Re<:eivables - cred1t 
impaired 

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 
(Disputed + Undispoted) 
TOTAL 

9 Other Hon-Current Ftnandat Assets 
Ot~r Non-Current Assets 
• Excess of p(anned assets over obUg:atlon 

• Refe,.- Note no: 30 for actuarial valuation. 

10 Income Tax. Assets 
TOS Receivable- fot ptevfous years 

Unbilled dues Not Due 

Unbilled dues Not Due 

--

As at March 31, As ~t~rch 31, 
2023 2022 

6S7.17 6S9.67 
S80.00 

1,407.89 1,294,26 
1,407.89 1,294.26 

657.17 1,239.67 

657.17 1,239.67 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipb 
Less than 6 6 months - More than 3 

months 1 year 1·3vears year<; TO\,t11I 

657.17 657.17 

1,407.89 1,407.89 

1,407.89 1,407.89 
657.17 657.17 

Outstandf~ for following periods from due date of receipts 

Less than 6 6 months· 1 More than l 
monUls year 1·3 years years Total 

1,2)9.67 1,239.67 

1,294.26 1.294. 26 

1,294.26 1,294.26 
1,239.67 1,239.67 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

◄]9.36 

4◄2.94 439.]6 

As at March 31 , As at March )1, 
2023 2022 

8,083. ,0 8.170.86 
8,083.10 8,170.86 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

4Ff1ur., In, thous•nd!. unl~s otherwt.H st•te-d} 

11 Cash and Cash Egu1val9nts 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

• There ere no repatr1ation restrictions wtth rogard to cash and cash oquivalonts as at tM end of the- reporting period and 
prior P4riods. 

12 Other Current Financial Assets 

Interest Receivable 
Inter corporate deposits 
Security Depo~ts 

13 Current Tax Assets (Net l 
TDS Receivable for 22-23 

1 ◄ Other Current Assets 

Prep.ld Expeo,e, 
Advances 
Balances with Go-vernment Authorities 
Advance/loans to Employees 

15 Equity Share Capita I 
a) Authorized Share Capital 

200,000,000 (A, at March 31, 2022 : 
200,000,000) equity sJl<ues of Rs. 1 each 

1,000,000 10. 75% Cumulative Redeemable 
Preference Shares of Rs 50/- each 

(As at March 31, 2022: 1,000,000) 10.75% Cumulative Preference 
Shares of Rs. SO/• each 

b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Shue Capital 
26,415,811 Equity Sha.res of R.e. 1/· each 

(As at March 31 .2022; 26,415,811 equity shares of Rs 1 each) 

c) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding al the beginning and at the end o r the reporting year 

At the begfnnfng of lhe year 
ISSl.led duri"i the y,oar 
Outstanding at the ~d of the year 

As at March J 1, 2023 
No. of shares , 

16,41 5.81 26,415.81 

26,415.81 26,415.8 

As at March 311 As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

14.45 7.70 

463.83 488.16 
478.28 49S.86 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

405.00 1,629.56 
5,000.00 S,000.00 

400.00 450.00 
5,805.00 7,079.56 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

185.55 219.42 
185.55 219.42 

As at Ma.rch 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

27.87 28.87 
5.78 

861.92 731.26 
15.00 

889,79 780.91 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

1,00,000.00 2,00,000.00 
50,000,00 50,000.00 

2,50,000,00 2. 50,000.00 

26,415.81 26,415.81 
26,415.81 26,415.81 

As at March 31, 2022 
No. of shares 

26,415.81 16,415.81 

26,415.81 26,415.81 



16 

17 

USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial Statements 
jr:'i1ur•1 in t thous.11nck unless otherw1$-C 1t• t•d) 

ContmuaUon of Note no: 1 s 

Hoto: 

Paid up capital Includes 26,414,411 Equity Shares issued as fully paid•up in terms of the Scheme of Oemer-ger approved by the 
Honble Calcutta High Court. 

d) There has been no movement 1n nunber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period. 

e) The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. ordinary equity shares having par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of ordinary shares" entitled to one 
vote per share and equal right for dividend. No prefe<eoce and/or restrictions on distribuoon of dividend and repayment of capital is attached to the above shares. 

f) Sh,ues in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than S% as on balance sheet date. 

No. of Equity "of Equity No. of Equity "of Equity 

Name o( shareholder Shares as on Shares ii.s on Shares as on 
Shar~s as 

March 31 2023 March l 1 2023 March 31 2022 on March 

31 2022 

UMIL Shares & Stock Broklno Services ltd. 30,75.127 11.87 30,75,117 11 .88 
Usha Martin Ve-ntures Limited 13,10,076 5.10 7,63,191 2.89 
Usha Breco Ltd 33,n,627 13.04 33,n,627 13.05 
Praieev Investments Limited 20,57,610 7.94 20,57,610 7.95 

A, at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

Qtllfr Equity 

Reserves a Surplus 110.15 120.25 
Securities Premium Account 120.25 120.25 

a) Retained Earninti / (Accumulated Deficit) 

Opening Balance 1,14,062.15 1,13,457.15 
Net (Loss)/ surplus for the year 632.81 60S.00 
Closlna Ba lance 1, 14,694.97 1.14,062.15 

b) Other comprehensive Income 

Opening Balance 
For the year 0.58 
Clost.na hlance 0.18 

Total 1,1'4,815.80 1,1◄, 182..◄0 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

Non-Current Uabtlities; 
Ftnar,ctal ltabllltie, 

Trade; payables 

Outstanding dues to 'mfcro enterprises and small enterprises 
OUtst.anding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises imd 
small enterprfses 358.97 1,312.27 
Total p,ayo1:bles 358.97 1,312.27 

Aaelnt of Trade payablos 
As i1t March 31, 2023 Outst1ndtn9 for followtng per1ods from due date of oavmont 

P•rtlcul.a,rs Not duo Less thM 6 6 months - 1 Less !Nin 1 
1-2 Years 2-l Ye-a" 

Moro than l 
TOTAL 

months voar Year vears 
{i) Micro and Small enterpJ!ses 
Iii) Disputed dues- Micro and 

Small enterprises 

liii) Others 358.97 358.97 
(iv) Disputed dues- Others 
Total 358.97 358.97 

As at March 31 2022 Outstanding: for t"ollowtna periods from due date of payment 

Particulan Less than 6 6 months - 1 less than 1 
1-2 Yoan 2-3 Years 

More than 3 
TOTAL Not due 

months vear Year years 
(il Micro and Small ente<prlses 
{ii) Disputed d~s- Micro and 

Small enterorises 
(lif)Olhe<s 1,312.27 1,312.27 
(iv) Disputed dues- Others 
Total 1,312.27 1,312.27 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION a SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

(Fl1ure-s ln , thCMJWmh unlcn otherwise st.ltedl 

Continuation of Note no: 17 

Disclosure relatlns to suppliers. re1istered under MSMEO A<;t t>.wd on tho information available with tho Company: 

Particulars 

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to ony -supplier at the ~nd of each accounting year: 
Principal 
Interest 

TOTAL 

(bl The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of secUon 16 of the MSMl'D Act, along with the 
amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accorn1tjng year. 

(Cl The amount of interest due and payable for the P"rlOd of delay in making payment (which have 
been paid but beyond the appoinU-d day during the year) but without addi~ the interest specif red 
under l;he MSMED Act. 

(d) The amount fJf intere5t accrued and remainlnj unpafd at the eod or each accounting year. 

(~) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable evE;>n in the succeeding years, until such 
d~te 'Nhen the interesl dues above are act ually pafd Lo the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance of a deductible expenditure undet" '5eetion 23 of the MSMEO Act. 

TOTAL 

18 Provisions 
Provision for tmpirement of Assets 
Employee Beoefit.s 

Current Liabilities: 
Flnanci•I Li•bilitios 

19 8orrowln,s 

Unse-c11od 
From Related Party 

• lnle<·Corporate Deposit 

• Interest rate@ 9.25" p.a i-s charted . 
.. Borrowings repayable on ckma.nd. 

20 Qther (urrent Ftn•nctal Lia bilities 
loterest on Unsecured Loan• Related Parties 

21 Other Current Li~bilities 
Statutory Dues Payable 
Capft.al Creditors 
Employee Related Liabilities 
Accrued f>P"nses 

22 Curre nt Pr9vjJj905 
EmployH> Benefits 

23 •Revenue from Operations 
Income from &u5-iness 

• Refer Note no: 39 for segregation of revenue. 

;;.--..._, 

~4 \ 

A,at Morch 31, As at Morch 31, 
2023 2022 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

12,176.75 

12,176.75 

12,176.75 
120.51 

1 Z,297.26 

AsatMarch31, Asa.tMarchl1, 
2023 2022 

25,715.00 27,065.00 
25,71S.OO 27,06S.00 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

3,165.15 J, 165.25 
3, 165.ZS 3, 165.ZS 

As at March 31, As at Morch 31, 
2023 2022 

49.84 42.81 
32.1◄ 

90.92 
1,217.87 1,254.04 
1,267.71 1,419.91 

As at March J1, As at MArch 31, 
202] 2022 

J.53 
3.53 

For the year For the year 
ended March 31 ended March 31 

4023 2022 

6554.70 7,837.39 
6 ,554.70 7,837.39 
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tFl1urH in, thous•ni:k unlHs otherwb.l!' st.1te-d) 

24 Other Income 
Income Tax Refund 
Inter Corporate Deposits 

Income on Planned Assets (Gratuity! 
Other Non-Operating locome 

Llab1Uth?$ no longef reqmred written back 

Gain on Fixed Assets sold/scrapped 

2S Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries and 6onus 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 

26 Finance Cost 
Bank Charges 
Other Borrowing Cost 
Others 

27 Depreciation and Amortization 
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
Amortization on Intangible Assets 

18 OPfC•tfOS and Administrative Expenses 
Travd liog and convey&nce 
Communic4'tion 
Maintenance expenses 

Rent (ltocludlng lease Rent) 
Insurance charges 
Computer Consumables 
Profes~onal and Consuttancy Charges 
Legal and Secreterial 
Director Meeting Fees 
Payment to Auditon • 
Loss on Fixed Assets discarded (Net) 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net) 
Bad Debts/Sundry ~lances written off (Net) 
Miscelloneow ~ 

•P•yment to Auditor'S 
Statutory Auditors 

Statutory Audit fees 

Certification and other matters 

29 Eamlnp Per Shore 

f or the year For the year 
ended March 31 ended March 31 

202l 2022 

11.23 3.54 
450.00 450.00 

58.89 56.57 
7.S4 155.84 

1,024.16 539.55 

23.73 
1,551.82 1,229.23 

2.373.17 Z.741.56 
156.B7 174.97 

2,530.04 2,916.53 

32.54 35.83 
1,572.50 1,572.50 

1.14 
1,606.18 1,608.33 

3.74 3.98 

3.33 
7.07 3.98 

51.73 1 16.94 
1.◄5 11 8.50 

61.79 37, 17 

40.68 40.68 
76.95 90.24 

4.14 
1.319 .84 1,169.65 
1,101.91 939.18 

6B.OO 60.00 

135.00 135.00 
107.75 
103.46 94.20 

3.61 ns.sJ 
106.)6 213.55 

3,178.53 3,894.78 

110.00 110.00 

25.00 25.00 
135.00 135.00 

Basic earnings Pf?r N re amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attrlbut.a~e to equity holders by the weighted ave1 age number of equll)' st"1a1 es 
outstanchng during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit a ttributabte to equity holders by the weighted average number of eqU?ty shares outstaochng 
durina the year plus the-weighted al/el'ag~ number of equity !>hares that would be issued on conve-rsion of all the dilutive potential equity shar-es into eqoity shares. 

The fotloWlng reflects the income and share daUI used in the bi!lsic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit attributable to equity holders (Al 

Weighted average number of equity shares (61 

Basic profit per share {A) / {B) (in INRI' 
Diluted profit per share (A) I (Bi (In INRI 

• EPS calculated on profit before con$iderina othe< compre-hen-sive income. 

Mat March 31, 
2023 

632.82 

26,41 5.81 

0.02 

0 .02 

As at March 31, 
2022 

605.00 

26,41 5.81 

0 .02 

0.02 
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(F'l1ures In, thousinds unlMS othef'Wbe s.Ultt'd) 

30 Employ" Benefits 
A. Defined benefit plans 

The Company has a d~fi~d benefit gro)tuity plan. The sche(J){! is funded hy plan assets. The gralu1ty plan entitles an employee, who has rendered al least five years 
of continuous service, to receive one,half month's salary fOf each ~ar of completed service at the time of retirement/exit. 

(t) Actuarial assumptions 
Discount rate (per annum) 
Rate of increase in salary 
ReUrement age (years) 
Mortolity rate 

(ii) Changes In the prosont value of defined benofit obligation 
Present value of obl1gat1on at the beginning of the year 
Interest cost 
Past service cost 
Current service cost 
Curtailments 
Settlements 
Benefits paid 
Actuarial gain on obligations 

Pr~sent value of obligaUon at the end of the year 

(Ill) Expenses recoinlzed in the Statement of profit and loss 
Current service cost 
Net interest (cost)/lncome 
Total (expeoses)/inc.orne recogm2ed in the Statement Profit and Loss 

(Iv) Amount reco1nke-d in other compr-ehonsive income in respect ot defined ~nefit plan 
Actuarial gains an~ng from change$ in demographic as$.1.Jmptions 
Actuarial gains arising from changes 1n financial assumptions 
Actuorial loss/(gain) ansfng from ex,pe(ience adjustments 
Actuarial loss/lgainl on plan assets 

(v) Chanps in the falr value of pl.ann9d assots 
Present value of planned asset at the beginning of the year 
Contribution to the plan 
Withdrawal from the plan 
ln.,,es.tment income 
Actuarial gain on planned asS( 

Fair .,,alue of planned asset as at the year end 

(vi} Assets and UabUlties recognized in the Balance Sheet: 
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the ye.,r 

Fair value of plan assets 
Net asset recognized in 8alance St.let 

(vii) Investment details of plan assets• 

LIC 
• In respect of Employee gratuity fund, composH:ion of plan a~ts is not readily availabte from UC 

(vlH) Expected contribution to tho fund tn the ne)(t year 
The company's best estimate of contribution during the next year 

As at March 31, 
2023 

0.07 
0.05 

58 Years 
1000,, of IALM 

2012-14 

401.88 
28.13 

27.76 

(1S8.671 
(10,6l!) 

288.42 

27.76 
0.03 

127.73) 

(4.02) 
16.66) 

fl0.6l!I 

841.24 

(158.67) 
58.89 

(10.10) 
731.36 

288.43 

731.37 
442.94 

100% 

• Please note that since th@ scheme is manaaed on funde,d basis, the next yea,r contribution is taken as nil for the cur-rl:!'nt year 
(ix) A q,...ntit•tiv• -n,i;1th,-lily •n•ly•i• lor •;anfflc.•nt: a,i;sumpdon •• ell- ~rc.h .31,202.3 h .,. ,.h<,~ ~•o-• 

Impact on defined benefit obligation 
Ohcou,t rate 

1% increase 263.28 
1% decrease 316.59 

Rate of Increase tn salary 
1%- fnerease 317.67 
1~ decrease 261 .94 

Rate of change in attrition rates 
10% fnc.rea.se 291.5] 
10% decrea"' 285.10 

As at March 31, 
2022 

0.07 
0.05 

58 Years 

100%of IALM 
2012-14 

355.76 
24.55 

34.87 

(13.29) 
401.89 

34.87 

(0.03) 
(34.841 

'3.30) 
(9,99) 

(13.29) 

764.11 

25.00 

52.74 
(0.80) 

841.l5 

401.88 

841,14 
439.36 

100'. 

370,7] 
436.61 

437,99 

368.99 

405.44 
398,07 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
Notes annexed to and forming part of the Financial Statements 

{l=lsures in , thousand,. \Ink» othcrwbe- st•te-d) 

31 Leas•s where company ts a lesse. 

11-.e Company has eot.e<ed into an Operating le~se aareement wflh Mis Redtech Networ k lnd1<1 private limited on May 1, 2022 
The le~se has be<?n Llken for off1ce premises approx 200 sq. ft. , the rent paid for which ls, -t.000 p.m. 
*The company has not entered into •ny sale or l&ast!' back trans•ction. 

32 Re-lated party diKlo-sure 

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Company: 

Subsidiary: 

Usha Martin Education Private um,ted 

Private company sharing common director. 
M/s Redtech Network India private limited 

Company under common control 
Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited 

Usha 6reco Lfmfted 
Jhawar Venture Management Pnvate Limited 
Usha Martin Venwres limited 

Key Managerial Penonn<>I ll<MP) 
IN, Vfnay Kumar Gupt.l (Whole Time Director DIN: 001746651 

IN. Prashant Jhawar (Chairman DIN: 003530201 
Mrs.Gans:otri Guha (Women director DIN: 01666863} 
M,. NIJ)l"ndra l<umar Sharma !Independent director DIN: 00076223) 
Mr. Anit kumar Modi (Independent director DIN: 00076129) 

Mr. Maooj Kumar Vijay (Independent director DIN: 00075792) 
Mr. lndrajit B.andyopadhyay !Chief Financial Officer-) 
Mr. Sume,,e,t l<vm•r (Cornpc,ny ~ecrct..ry) (A,ppoh~lt.--d w .,i,:.r. 2.8111/ZOZZ} 

Ms. Rituparna Oas (CompMy Secretary) !Resigned w .e.f 31/01/20211 

B. Details of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business for the year ended: 

(i) Rent paid 

Mis Redtech Network India private limited (A pnvatecompany having common director) 

(tt) Remuneration 
Mr. lndrajit S.ndyopadhyay (Chief financial officer) 
Mr. Vi nay kumar Gupta (Whole time director) 

M,. Someet Kumar (Company secret.lry) (Appointed w.e. f. 28/11/2022) 

Ms. Rituparna Das (Company Secretary) (Resigned w.e.f 31/01/2022) 
(lti I Interest paid 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited (Company under common control\ 
(iv) Reimburseffll!'nt of exp@nse-s receivod 

Usho Mnrtin Education Private Lfmfled {S.Ubsfdjary) 

M/s Redtech Network India private limited 
(v) Relmbursemli'nt of exponses paid 

M/s Re'(;ttech Network India private Umllecl 
jvi) Consultancy lncomo 

usm Breco L,imited (Con'lpany under common control) 
(VU) Consultancy expense, 

Ush.!i. Mar-tin Education Pr-ivate Umit@d (Subsidiary) 
(vttl) Un~urt!d loan: 

a) Taken durint the year: 
Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Um1t~d {Coml)ilny under common control) 

b) Repaid during the year: 
Jhawar Impact Ventures. Prival@ UmitPd {Company under common control) 

Jhawar Venture Managemeot Pnv.,1te Limited (Company under common control) 
(Is) Directors Sitting fees paid 

Mr. Pn~sha11t J~war (Chairman DIN: 003Sl020' 
Mrs.Gangotri Guha (Women director DIN: 01666863) 

M,. Hlpendra Kumar Sharma (Independent director Dltl: 00076223) 
IN. Anil Kumar Modi (Independent director DIN: 000761291 
IN. Manoi Kumar Vijay (Independent director DIN: 00075792) 

(x) Balance$ out5tanding at year end 

Usha Martin Education Private limited (Subsidh,ry) 
(a) Inter Corporate Deposits 

Jhawar Impact Ventures Private Limited (Company under common control) 

Jhawar Venb..-e Management Private Limited (Company under common controO 

As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2023 2022 

40.68 40.68 

674.43 909.15 
·1 ,250.00 1,250.00 

61.15 

356.30 

1,572.50 1.172.IO 

227.61 265.15 
130.75 1S1.84 

130.75 113.4◄ 

1,600.00 2,200.00 

100.00 100.00 

800.00 

1,350.00 
800.00 

8.00 8.00 
18.00 16.00 
14.00 16.00 
10.00 4.00 
18.00 16.00 

14,172.23) (2,783.8◄) 

(19,%5.00) (20,515.00) 

(5,750.00) (6,550.001 
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Continuation of Note no, 32 (b)(x) 

Cb) Int.rest 
Jhawar Venture Man~gement Private limited (Cornpally uoder common control) 
Jhawar Impact Ventures Private limited (Company under common contr'ol) 

(c) Tr.a~ receivable 

Usha M4rtin Venture-5 Um1ted (Company under common control) 
S (•ve) figure represonts amount paya~e 
# Figures are indusivo of GST, 

11,750.001 
(1,41U5i 

(1,750,001 
(1,415.251 

580.00 

• Tho transactions w;th related partie$ are mado on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm·s lonath transactions. Outstanding balanc:4:!'s c11t the period­
end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash or credit as per the tCl'rms of the arrangement. 

Jl Seament reportlni, 

A . Identification of segments 

An operattlli segmen~ is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expense-s, whose operating 
resutts are regularly reVJewcd by the Company's Ch1~f Operatin~ Oeciston Maker ("COOM") to make decisions for which d1screte fmandat inf()(m11tJon is available. 
The Company's chief operating decfslon maker is, the Chairman ft Whole Time Director. The Board of directofs monitors the operating re-stilts of all product segments 
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment based on an analysis of various performance Indicators by 
bo~ness segments and geographic segments. 

8 . Sf!gment revenue and @xp,e,nses: 

It has been identified to i111 segment on the basis of reilationsh1p to operadng acU11tUes of the segment. 
The Company g_ttM!tally accounts for intcrsegment sales and transfe,s ot CO$l plus appropriate margins. 
lntersegment revenue and profit ,s eliminated at group level consolidation. 

finance income earned and finance e xpense incurred are not allocated to indfvidual segment a.nd the 

C • Seament assets and liabilities: 

Segment as.sets and segment liabflftles represent assets and hab1lfUes of respective segments, however the assets and liabilities not identifiable e>r allocable on 
reasonable basis being related to enterprise as a whole have been grouped as unallocc11b{e. 

The accoont1ng policies of the rcporti111blc SC-iments are sao,e a:s tJ·u1t of Cir-oup's accounting pollcle!o dl!!'scf'ibed. 
No operatint1 segments ti.ave been aggr-egated to fo.-m the above reportable operating ~g~nts. Common allocable co~ts are allocdted to eac h segment according to 
the relative contrlbut.ion of each segment to the total common cost.$. 

" Usha Marttn Education 8: Soluttons l lmfted is ensated in e-docational management services and does not have any other se-v,ment of business. 

3.if Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The fai r value of other current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, and other financial liabilities approximate t he car-ryn)i 
amounts because of the short term nature of these financial fMtruments. 

The amortized cosl using effective interest rate (EIR) of non-current financial assets consisting of security is not significantly different from the carrying a.mol.Ult. 

Ffnancial assets that are neither past du~ oor impaired include cash and cash eqUJvalents, security dep1ntb and other financial as.sets. 

Fair value trierarchy 

The followins Uthe hierarchy for determining and dKcloslns the fair value of financial Instruments by valuation technique: 
•level 1 - Quoted price!i junadjusted) in active markets for ldenlical assets or hab1lltfe1. 

•level 2 • Inputs olhet- than quoted prices Included within level 1 that ar-c obscr.-able for the asset or UnbHrty, cithef" directly {Le. as pnces) or 1nd1rectly (Le. 
dcrived from prices). 

•level 3 • Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are oot based on obse:t'vable market data iunobservabl@ inputs). 

No financial assets/liabltlties have been valued usina level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements. 

The f0Uow1r,1 t:able present::, foll'" volue hterarchy or asseu ~nd IIGbtllUvJ; mea1ured at fair value on a recurr1n1 basis: 

Level 3 
financial as~ts 
Measured at amortisod cost 

Trade receivables 
Cash and caish equivalents 
Other finaocial a.ssets 

Totol 
Financial liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost 

8orrowiniS • long term including current maturities and short term 
Trade payable, 
Other financial llabll1ties 

Totol 

As et March 31, As at March 31 , 
2023 2022 

657. 17 1,239.67 
478.28 495.86 

5,805.00 7,079.56 
6,940.45 8,815.09 

25,715.00 27,065.00 
358.97 1,312.28 

3,165.25 3, 16S.2S 
29,239.22 31,542.53 
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35 Financial risk management 9bJe<liYn ond poll<les 

The Company is exposed to vadous finaocial risks. Tilese r'i:;k.s a re categonzed imo market rl$SI:, credtt risk and liquidity nsk. The Company's risk management 1s 
coordinated by the Board of Directors l'lnd focuses on securing long term and short term cash flows. The Company does oot engage in trading of financial assets for 
speculative purposes. 

A, MArket Risk 

Market ris-k fs the nsk that the fofr value or future cash n~ of a finaocial instrument will fluctuate because of changes rn market pnces. Market risk comp(ises tllree 
types of risk: Interest rate risk, curreocy risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include 
borrowings iimd derlvi!itive financial instrurnenl.$. 

(i) Forei1n curre-ncy risk 

F"orefsn currency risk is the dsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates. The 
Compa.ny's exp:,sure to the risk of chotnges fn foreign exchange rates relates prlmartly to the Company's operaUng act1V1t:1es {when revenue or expense Is 
denominated in a different currency from the Company's fu-x:Uoncll currencyl, 

Ai at March 31
1 As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Trade receivables 1,407.89 1,294.26 
Provisions 1,407.89 1,294.26 
Revenue from operations 4,954.70 5,637.39 

Sensitivity analysis 

Chanae in 
Effect on profit 

US$ rate 
2023 0.05 580.73 

(0.o,, (!180.731 

ZOU 0.05 1,616.◄2 

(0.05) (1 ,616.42) 

8. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counlerparty Lo a financial instrument ra,ls to meet 1ts contractual obligations. Credit nsk 
arises pnndpally from the Company's receivables from depoSlts with landlords and other UalUtory deposits with regulatory agencies ;:,.nd also arises from cam held 
with banks and finandal institutions. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to U'K' (:llrrying value of the financial assets. TI~ ob)e<:.ltve of managi~ 
counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Compa,JY assesses the credit quality of the counterpartles, tilking into account their financial 
position, past expenence and other factors. 

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated bank, and institution> and retaining sufficie,it balances in bank 
accounts required to meet a month's operational costs. The Management reV1ews the bank accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensure that 
there is minimal surplus cash in bank ac.counts. The Company does a PfOper financial and credibility check on the landlords before taking any property on lease and 
hasn't had a sinste fnstance of oon~refund of security deposit on vacating the leased property. The Company also in some cases ensure that th~ 110tice period rent.als 
are adjusted against the security deposits and only differential, ff any, is paid out thereby further mitigating the non-realization risk. The Company does oot foresee 
any credit risks on deposits With regulatory authorities, 

The Compa.ny's maximum exposure to cred1l r1sk for lhe romponents of the balance sheet at Mar.::h 31, 2023 and March 31,2022 1s the carrymg amounts as 
mentfon,c,d In respective notes.. 
C. Liquidity risk 

LfQufdfty risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to ,neet h.s fln,mc::ial obli,gations as they become dUI?. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, 
a5 far as possible, lhol It will always have sufficient HQUfdlly to meet its liabilities when due. 

TI-le bible below , ummar12es the maturity profile of the Company's financia l liabilittes: 

March 31, 202l 

Borrowings 

Trade payable, 
Total 

March 31,2022 
6orrowings 

Trade payables 
Total 

36 Corporate soclal responsibility e xpense 

Lns than 
3 months 

Within 12 
months 

25,715.00 

25,715.00 

27,065.00 

27,065.00 

The company I< not eligible for CSR expenditure as per secuon 135 read with Schedule VII of the Compante·s Act 2013. 

1 to, years Total 

25,715.00 
358.97 358. 97 
358.97 26,073.97 

27,065.00 
_1,312. 29 1,312.29 
1,312.29 28,377.29 
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37 Capital management 

38 

39 

For~ purpose of the Company's capital management, ca.p(tal Includes Issued equity capital, convertible pr-dcrcnce $hares, share pretnlum and all other e quity 
re-,crve, o.ttr1butoblc: to the equity holder:,,. The primary objective of the Cornpany·s c apital manaBernent 1s to max1m1ze the shareholder value and to ensure the 
Company's ability to conbnue as a going concern, 

The Company has not d istributed any dividend to lu shareholdets. The Company moolto, s {Je,MloV ratio i.e . tot.at debt in propo,uoo (O ,u ovorall financing structure, 
Le. equity and debL Total debt comprises of non~current borrowing which rep<esentsborrowmgs from related parties The Company manage<i lhe capu.al structure 
ond ma~s adjustmerits lO iC in the tight of changes m economic conditions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31 , 2023 and Marc h 31, '2022. 

As at March As at March 31, 
Accountina Ratios Numerator Denominator 31, 2023 2022 Variance" 

Current ratio (1n times) Current assets Current hab,lities 0.04 0.04 -1'1, 

Trade receivables Average accounts 
turoover ratio (In Ume,) receivables 

Sales 6.91 5.52 25% 

Net capital turnover Average working 
ratio (In time,) Sale< capital 
Debt service coverage 

(0.20) (0.26) .m; 

ratio (in times) 
Operatini profit Debt serv1c@ (I) (0.321 11 .201 · 741' 

Debt equity ratio (in Sha,eholder's 
times) Total debt equity 0. 19 0.20 -5'1, 

Net profit ratio (in %) EAT Net sal@S (Ill 0.08 0.06 28% 

Re6SOns for variance>; 25% 

(0 LO"Ner scale of operations 
(ii) Increase In other income 

Revenue from op,rratiom 

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contract.s with Customers ("'Ind AS 115"), es.tabhshes a frame,,vork for determining \Nhether, how much and 'Mlen 
revenue is recogmsed and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainly of revenues and cash flows arising from customer contracts. Under 
Ind AS 115, revenue Is recognised through• S·step approach: 

i) Identify the contracts with customers; 
ii) Identify separate performance obligations in the contract; 
Iii) Determine the transaction price; 
iv) Allocate the tran;.ction price to the performance obligations: and 
v) Recognise revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied 

Revenue from operations 
Domestic 
foreign 
TOTAL 

B. Auets and liabilities rel•ted to contracts with customers 

Trade receivables 
TOTAL 

A$ at March 31 , 2023 
Other 

Tu,lnlna •nd O~l'"•t.lna 
consultancy Income 

1,600.00 
4,9~.70 

6,554.70 

As at March 31, 2.023 

Current 
Non­

Current 

As. •t March 3 1, 2022 

Trainlna and 

COMUlt•ricy 

2.200.00 
5,637.39 

7,837.39 

Other 

ln<:ome 

As at March 31, 2022 

Current Non - Current 
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<40 Conttnsent l'iabilitleS 

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of ei past evenl that probably requires an outflow of resourcl"'S ~od a relie10le estimate 
can be made of the amount of obli gation, Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the ex.peodlture required to settle the present obli!!!ation at the Bal ance 
s~t date and are not discounted to it s present value. 

A disclosure for a continge nt liability Is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligc1tion that probdbty wtll not require- t1.n outflow of resources or 
where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. 

"The company has not Identified any s,uch continaent liilbility whoro t here is a probable chance for outflow. 

41 Disclosure of transactions with struck off companies 

The Companv did not have any material transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Soction 560 of Companies Act, 1956 
during the financial year. 

◄2 Complt•nce With 5chedule Ill 

(i) No transaction undertaken or legal proceedin1 initiated aaaimt the company in respect of the f ollowlna: 

a) Crypto Currency or Vlrtual Currency. 
b) 6eoam1 Property held uode< Prohibition of 8enami Property Transact.ions Act, 1988 and rules made thereuodef. 
(ii) No charge due for registration has been lying pending. Neither any charge relinquished is pending surrender. 
(Iii) Company does not have any borrowrng and as such the disclosures relating l0 borrowing do not apply. 
(iv) No income pertaining to any earlier year has been surrendered to fiscal department for assesment during the year which were not , ccounled for in the books of 
the com~ny In earlier financial years. 

(v) There has been no devfation 1n respect of number of layers prescribed under section 2 (87} of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Restrictton on number 
of layers) Rules, 2017 

lvll) No scheme has been furnished to the authorities under section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013 
(Viii) The Company has neither Lent nor receiYed any fuod from domestic or overseas sources for cltrect ot incmect benefit ot any pe,son or entity, 

(h<) Tt-.e C:o(l.e ,:..~ S,,xf,.l $..:u•i t.y .l020 i•l.h~ Cod,e' ► reto!Jn3 lo e"'f>loyee benef1t.s, dudns t.he employment. end post.-en-1p(oym-enl, has received Presidcnt.,ol ,nsent. on 

Septembef' 28, 2020, The Code has b,c,en publi~d in the Gazette of India. Fur ther, the Ministry of Labour and Empioyment ha$ released draft rvles for the Code on 
November 13, 2020. However, the effective dntc from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the fi~ncial impact are also 
not yet issued. 
The Company will assess the impact of the Code and wilt give appropriate tmpact in the financial s~tements in the period in which, the Cod@ becomes. effective and 
the related rules t o determir.e the firnu'IClal impo.cl are pubtished. 

4'3 All fisures have been stated at "' in thousands upto two decimals unless staled otherwise. 

Pfv 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 
Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(figures in , thousands unless otherwise stated) 

General Information 

Usha Martin Education and Solutions Limited (formerly known as Usha Martin lnfotech Limited) was incorporated on August 
18th, 1997 under Comapnies Act 1956 (No. 1 of 1956) and the company is limited by shares with CIN number: 

l31300WB1997PLC085210, listed on NSE (Registeration no: 532398) and BSE (Registration no: UMESLTD). The Company is 
domiciled in India having registered office at Godrej Waterside, Block DP·S, Tower-II ,Unit-1206, 12th floor Sector V Salt 
Lake Kolkata 700091, West Bengal. 

Authorisation of financial statements 

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 
25th May 2023. 

2 Basis of preparation 

The financial statement have been prepared on going concern basis is accordance with accounting principals generally 
accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis excepted for certain 

financial assets and financial labilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained in 
relevant accounting policies. Amount in the financial statement are presented in~ thousand"s, upto two decimals,unless 
otherwise stated. 

(I) Statement of Compliance with IND AS: 

The Company prepares fts Financial Statements to comply with the accounting standards speci fied under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. These 

Standalone financial statements includes Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including 

Other Comprehensive Income, Cash flows Statement and Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March, 
2023, and a summary of significant accounting policies. and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to 
as ''Financial Statements"), 

(ii) Bas1s of measurement: 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except certain financial 
assets and liabilities measured at fair value/amortized cost/discounted value as referred to in appropriate part of 
accounting policies. 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company"s operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule -Ill of Division - II to the Companies Act, 2013. The company has determined the operating 

cycle as 12 months based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of raw materials for processing 

and their realisation in Cash and Cash Equivalents. 

(iii} Operating Cycle: 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 

equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities. 

An O$S-et Is ueated as current when it is: 

(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
(b) Held primarily for tho purpose of trading; 

(C) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is treated as current when: 
(a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

(c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 
Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(FI11ures In ~ thousands unless otherwise stated) 

(iv) Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company's functi onal currency. All amounts have 

been rounded to the nearest~ thousands,unless otherwise Indicated. 

(v) Use of estimates and Judgments 

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires the management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date, reported amount of 
revenue and expenses tor the year and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and 

assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon the managements· evaluation of the relevant 

facts and circumstances as at the date of financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if any, are recognised in 
the year in which. the estimates are revised and in any future years affected. 

3 Summary of sfgn1ficant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarized 
below: 

(a) Current/ Non - current classtftcation: 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and 
other criteria set -out in t he Act. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current 

liabilities, as the case may be. 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

Revenue from business basically comprises of providing consultancy services which is recognized at the fulfillment of 

service contract and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The performance obligations in contracts are 

considered as fulfilled in accordance with the terms agreed with the respective customers. 

Interest income is recognized using effective interest method. 

Dividend Income is recognized at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date. 

Other incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in the financial statements, except when there is uncertainty of 
collection. 

IC ) Property, Plant & equipment: 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated Impairment losses, if 
any. These tangible assets are held for use in consultancy services or for administrative purposes. 

Cost comprises purchase cost, freight, duties, taxes and other expenses directly incidental to acquisition, bringing the 

asset to the location and installation including site restoration up to the time when the asset is ready for i ntended use. 
Such costs also include borrowing cost if the recognition criteria are met. 

When a major inspection/repair occurs, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment 
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are sat isfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous 
inspection/repair is derecognized. All other repair and maintenance are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit 
and Loss as incurred. 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful lives of assets as specified in Schedule II to the 
Act except where the management, has estimated useful life of an asset supported by the technical assessment, external 
or internal, I.e., higher or lower from the indicative useful life given under Schedule II. The management believes that 
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be 

used. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated lJSeful lives of the assets as follows: 

Description Useful ltves (upto) 

Leasehold land Over lease period 

Building 60 years 

Plant and machinery 15 years 

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 

Vehicles 8 years 
Office equipment 10 years 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Notes formi ng part of financial statements. 
(Figure, In " thousands unle.s otherwise stated) 

•continuation of point (c ) 

The residual value and useful life is reviewed annually and any deviation is accounted for as a change in estimate. 

Components relevant to property, plant and equipment , where significant, are separately depreciated on straight l ine basis 
in terms of their life span assessed by technical evaluation in item specific context . 

For new projects, all direct expenses and direct overheads (excluding services of non-exclusive nature provided by 
employees in Company's regular payroll) are capitalized till the assets are ready for Intended use 

During disposal of property, plant and equipment, any profit earned / loss sustained towards excess / shortfall of sale value 
vis·a·vis carrying cost of assets Is accounted for in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(d) Intangible assets: 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on Initial recognition at cost of acquisition. The cost comprises of 
purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condi tion for intended use. Intangible 
assets arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair value as at date of acquisition. In case of internally generated 

assets, measured at development cost subject to satisfaction of recognition criteria (identifiability, control and future 
economic benefit) in accordance with Ind AS 38 'Intangible Assets' . 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
Impairment loss, if any. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The 
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Amortization of intangible assets such as softwares is computed on a straight-line basis, at the rates representing estimated 
useful l ife of up to 5 years. The brands and trademarks acquired as part of business combinations normally have a 
remaining legal 1fre of not exceeding ten years but is renewable every ten years at nominal cost and is well establ,ished. 

(e) Impairment of non-financial assests: 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether t here is any indication based on Internal / external factors, that an 
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit (CGU) 
Is estimated. If such recoverable amount of the asset or CGU to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is 
recognized i n the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. If, at the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously 
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the 
recoverable amount . Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the Standalone Statement of 

Profit and Loss. An asset is deemed impai r able when recoverable value is less than its carrying cost and the difference 
between the two represents provisioning exigency. 

(f) Impairment of financial assets: 

In accordance with Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments'. the Company applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the weighted-average of difference between 
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all t he cash flows that the 
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default 
occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company Is required to consider: 

All contractual terms of the financial assets (Including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets; 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 
Trade Receivables: 

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments', 

whfch requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected 

credi t losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
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Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(Figures in , thousands unless otherwise stated) 

• Continuation of point (f) 

Other financial assets: 

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses 1f the credit risk on those financial assets has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the 
lifet ime expectecJ credit losses. When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default 
occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk pf a 
default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial 
asset as at the date or initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without 
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of sienificant increases in credit risk since initial recoenition. Th~ Company aS$umes 
that the credit risk on a financial asset has not Increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is 
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date. 

(g) Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at 

fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and 
financial liabilities is described below: 

Non-derivative financial assets 
Subsequent measurement 
Financial assets carried at amortized cost 
A financial asset is measured at the amortizedcost, if both the following conditions are met: 

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest ('SPPI') on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate ('EIR') method. 
Investments in equity Instruments of subsidiaries. 

Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss ('FVTPL'). 
For all other equity Instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon Initial recognition, on an Instrument by 

fnstrument basis ,'to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') or fair value 
through profit or loss l'FVTPL') . Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to 
profit or loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments are 
recognized in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost and private company having common director is carried at cost as well. 

Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss ('MPL'). 
For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by 
instrument basis, to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income ('MOCI') or fair value 
through profit or loss ('MPL'). Amounts presented in other comprehensive 

Investments in equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit or loss i'FVTPL') . 
For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irrevocable chofce upon initial recogni tion, on an Instrument by 
instrument basis, to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income ('fVTOCl'I or fair value 
through profit or loss ('FVTPL'). 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 
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Debt instruments 

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ('MOCI') or 
fai r value through profit or loss ('MPL') till de-recognition on the basis of: 

f. the entity's business model for managing the financial assets; and 

ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

(a) Measured at amortized cost 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest , are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized 
in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

(b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective fs achieved by both, selllng financial assets and 
collecting contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income 

('OCI'). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Standalone 
Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from 
t he equity to ·other Income' in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(c ) Measured at fair value through profit & loss 

A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as MPL. Such financial assets are 

measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, including interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as 

'other income' in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

De-recognition of financial assets 
A financial asset is primarily de-recognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset. 

Non- derivative financial liabilitfes 
Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent to lnlt1al recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expire-;. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an 

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the 
original liability and the recogni tion of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in 
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 

Derivative financial instruments 
The Company holds derivative financial instruments in the form of future contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in 
exchan2e rate-; on foreign currency exposure. The counterparty for these contracts are scheduled commercial 
banks/regulated brokerage firms. AlthOugh these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they do not 
qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109 'financial Instruments' and consequently are categorized as financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fai r value through profit or loss. The resulting exchange gain or loss is included in other 

Income/expenses and attributable transaction costs are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss when 
incurred. 

Financial guarantee contracts 
Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts t hat require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss i t 
incurs because- the specified party fails to make a payment when due fn accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a f inancial liability at the time the guarantee is issued at fair value, 
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is 
measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 
109 'Financial Instruments' and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Standalone Balance Sheet i f there 
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 

realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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(h) Fair value of measurement 
The Company measures financial instrument>, such as, derivatives at fair value at each Standalone Balance Sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 

transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabili ty. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liabili ty, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in i ts highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in t he circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the 

use of unobservable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, descri bed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole: 
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable. 
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable. 

For assets and liability that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 

whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonzatlon (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

The company"s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as 
derivative instruf]lents and unquoted financial assets measure at fai r value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as 

assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. 

(i) Employee benefit,; 

Liabilities in respect of employee benefits to employees are provided for as follows: 

Current employee benefit 
• Current employee benefits 
a. Liabilities for wages and salaries, Including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months af ter the end of the period In which the employees render the related serV1ce are recognized in respect of 
employees· services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be incurred when 
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee dues payable in the Standalone Balance Sheet. 
b. Employees' State Insurance ('ESI') is provided on the basis of actual liability accrued and paid to authorities. 

c . The Company has adopted a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in 
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an 
independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to 
be paid/ availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non­
accumulating compensated absences is recognized in t he period in which the absences occur. 

d. Expense In respect of other short-term benefits is recognized on t he basis of the amount paid or payable for the period 

during which services are rendered by the employee 

Po,t seperation employee benefi t plan 
a. Defined benefit plan 

Post separation benefits of Directors are accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 19 
'Employee Benefits' 
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•continuation of point (i) 

Gratuity liability accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' . Liability 

recognized in the Standalone Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 

the end of each reporti ng perfod less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefi t obligation is calculated annually by 

an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of defined benefit is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash out flows by reference to market yield at the end of each reporting period on 

R0vernment bonds t hat have terms approximate to the terms of t he related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated 
by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defi ned benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This 
cost is included i n cmploye~ benefit expense in the Standalone Statement of P.-ofi t and Loss. 

The Company contributes i ts share of contribution to Employees' Provident Fund Scheme administered by a separate trust 
with its obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, in trust fund ar ising on account of difference between the return on 

Investments of the trust and the interest rate on provident fund dues notified periodically by the Central Government and 
any expected loss in investment. Liability recognized in the Standalone Balance Sheet i n respect of Dabur India E.P.f trust 
is the present value of t he defined benefit obligation at the end of each reporting period less the fair value of plan assets 
on t he basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gain/ loss pertaining to gratuity, post separation benefits and PF t rust are accounted for as OCI. All remaining 

component s of costs are accounted for in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer Note: 30 

(j) Provisions, contingent liability and conti ngent assets: 

• Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events and 
when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at 
each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present value, 
where the time value or money is material. 
• Contingent liability is disclosed for: 
a. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or 
b. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligat ion or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

• Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realization of income is virtually certain, related 
asset is recognized 

(kl Foreign currency transaction and translations: 

Foreign currency t ransactions are recorded In t he functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the 
functional currency and the foreign currency at t he date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary i tems outstanding 
at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated i n 

a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are repor ted using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 
Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from 
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in 
which they arise .. 

(1) Operation segments: 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker ('CODM') of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing per formance of 
the operating segment s of the Company. 

(ml Earnings per share: 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dur ing the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per share, the net profit for the period at tributed to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all potentially dilutive equi ty shares. 
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(n) Borrowing Cost: 

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and also include 
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the same. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition and/ or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period or time that Is necessary to 
complete and prepare the asset for its Intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Standalone Statement of 
Profit and Loss as incurred. 

(o) Cash & Cash equivalent: 

For the purpose of the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cheques in hand, 
bank balances, demand deposits with banks where the original maturity Is three months or less and other short-term highly 
liquid Investments net of outstanding bank overdrafts and cash credit facilities as they are considered an integral part of 
the Company's cash management. 

(p) Taxes 

Tax expense recognized in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax 

except the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Current tax is determined as the tax 

payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current 
income tax relating to i tems recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). 

(Q) Sf1!niflcant management Judgement tn apply1ng accounting pottctes and estimates uncertainty: 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires the management to make j udgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities: 

• Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets 
requires, the management to make an assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 

deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. 

• Recoverability of advances / receivables 
At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over expect ed life, the management assesses the 
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. 

• Defined benefit obligation ('DBO') Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of under lying assumptions 
such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these 
assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit exper1ses. 

• Provisions 

At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Company assesses the 
requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be 
different from this judgement. 

, Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities may a.rise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, (refer note 
40). By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. 

The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant 

judgments by management and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

• Fair value measurements 

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial i nstruments (wt1ere active market quote!: 
are not available) and share based payments. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how 
market participants would price the instrument. The Company engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the 
valuation. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets, 
liabilities and sha,re based payments. are disclosed in the notes r:.o standalone ftnanctal statements. 

• Useful l ives of depreciable / amortizable assets Management reviews its estimate of the useful l ives of depreciable / 
amortizable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates 
relate to technical and economic obsole5cer.ce that may change the utility of a;sets. 

,,,.,. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION a SOLUTIONS LTD. 

CIN: L31300WB 1997PLC085210 
Notes forming part of financial statements. 
(Figuf'"es in "' thousands unless otherwh.e stated) 

4 Recent pronouncements in IND AS notified effective from April 1st 2023, 

IND AS: 12 Deferred Taxes 

Paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes exempt an entity lrom recognising a deferred tax asset or liability in 

particular circumstances. Despite this exemption, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, a first-time adopter shall recognise a 

deferred tax asset- to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised- and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences 
associated with: (a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and 
(b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the cost of the 
related asset." 

IND AS: 107 Ffnancfal Instruments 

Presentation of Financial Statements, an entity discloses material accounting policy informat10n. Information aboul the 
measurement basis (or bases) for financial instruments used in preparing the financial statements is expected to be 
material accounting policy information. 

IND AS: 1 Presentation of Ffnanc1al Statements 

Ind AS 1 also requires entities to disclose, along with material accounting policy Information or other notes, the 
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the entity's 
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

• Aforesaid amendment do not have material impact in the financial statements prepared for the current year. 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN• L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Registered Office: Godrej Waterside, Unit No. 1206, 12th Floor, Block DP- 5, Sector-V, Salt Lake City, Kolkata • 700 091. 
Tel: +91 33 68103700 

STATEMENT OF STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS 
FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023 . 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars Quarter ended Year ended 

31--03-2023 31-12-2022 31-03-2022 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 

SI. 
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

No. 
1 Revenue from Operations 9 86 11.50 17.71 65.55 78.37 
2 Other Income 6.01 2.70 0.56 11 .00 7,77 
3 Total Income 11+21 15.87 14.20 18.27 76.55 86.14 

4 Expenses 
(a) Purchase of Traded Goods . . - -
(b) Employee Benefits Expense 6,09 5.29 6.29 23.01 27.35 
(c) Finance Costs 3.98 4 01 3.96 1603 16.07 
(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.07 0.04 
(e) Other Expenses 2.55 3 77 5.1 1 31.84 37 77 
m Excenlionat Items . - - -

Total Exoenses 12.66 13.08 15.37 70.96 81.23 

5 Profit before tax 13-41 3.21 1.12 2.90 5.60 4.91 

6 Tax Expense 
(a) Current Ta,c . . . 

(b) Short/(Excess) provision of taxation for previous periods . 0 34 . 0.34 
le\ Deferred Tax . . . . 

Total Tax Exoense 0.34 0.34 . 

7 Net Profit/llossl for the period (5-6) 3.21 0.78 2.90 5.26 4.91 
8 Other Comprehensive income, net of income tax 

(a) (i) items that will not be' class~ied to profit or loss 0,01 . . 0.01 . 
(ii) inoome tax relating to items that will not be classified to . . . . 

profit or loss 

(b) (i) items that will be reclassified to profit or loss . . 
(ii) inoome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to . . . 

profit or loss 

Tot.al other comprehenaive income, net of income lax 0.01 . 0 .01 . 

9 Total comprehensive income for the period (7+8) 3.22 0.78 2.90 5.27 4.91 

10 Paid-up Equity Share Capital: (Face value Re. 1 each) 264.16 264.16 264.16 264, 16 264.16 

11 Earnings per share (of Re. 1 each) (not annualised) 
(a) Basic (in Rs.) 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.02 
(b) Diluted (in Rs.) 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.02 

Note&: 
1) The above Financial Results, after review by the Audit Committee. have been approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors at 

their meeting held on 25th May 2023. 

2) This statement has been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereon and other recognised accounting practices and policies to the extent 
applicable. 

3) The investments in Usha Martjn Education Private Limited (subsidiary company) have been evaluated by the management and accordingly 
we are of the opinion that no provision for Impa1rment is considered necessarey in respect of these investments. 



4) The Company has only one reportable segment. Hence no segment repoting is required in accordance with IND AS 108 "Operating 
Segments " 

5) The Company has Unabsorbed Depreciation and Business Loss available for set off under the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, in view of 
inability to assess future taxable income in absence of any convincing evidence available to the management, the extent of net deferred tax 
assets which may be adjusted in the subsequent year Is not ascertainable at this stage and accordingly the same has not been recognised in 
the accounts on consideration of prudence. 

6) Figures of last quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures of the full financial year and published figures up to the nine months 
ended 31 .12.2022 of the respective financial year 

7) Statutory Auditors have provided an unmodified opinion on the Financial results. 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 25th May 2023 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

Kolkata . 
.. ~:;-,, 

,· >-~· 
· ...... ~··~ 

ty.r,..;~i-1n. 
Vinay Kumar Gupta 

Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00574665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 

CIN- L31300WB1997PLC085210 
Registered Office: Godrej Waterside, Unit No.1206, 12th Floor, Block OP- 5, Sector- V, Salt Lake City, Kolkala • 700 091. 

Tel: •91 33 66103700 
Standalone Statement of Assets & Liabilities 

fRs. in Lakhl 

Particulars 
31-03-23 31-03-22 
Audited Audited 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 123.23 124.35 

Capital Work-in-Progress - -
Investment Property - -
Goodwill . -
Other Intangible Assets 0 50 0.01 
lntanglOle assets under development 
Biological assets other than bearer plants - . 
investments accounted for using equity method . -

123.73 124.36 
Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-Current Investments 1,605 00 1,605.00 

T rade receivables, non-current 6.57 12.40 

Other non-current financial assets 4 43 4.40 

Total Non-Current Financial Assets 1,616.00 1,621.80 
Income Tax assets (net) 71.96 72.14 

Deferred Tax assets (net) . 
Other non-current assets . . 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,811.69 1,818.30 

Current Assets 
Inventories . 
Current Financial assets 
Current Investments . . 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.09 0 05 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4,20 4.51 
Loans, current . 
Other current financial assets 4.00 4 50 

Total Current financial assets 8.29 9.06 

Current tax assets (net) 1.81 2.02 

Other current assets 3 82 2.97 

Total Current assets 13,92 14.0S 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Regulatory deferral account debit balances and related deferred tax assets - -
Total Assets 1,826.61 1,832.35 

EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 264.16 264.16 

Other Equity 1,094 18 1,088.91 

Total Equity 1,358.34 1,353.07 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Non-Current Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings - -

Trade payables 3.15 12.82 

Other Non-Current financial Liabilities - -
Total non-Current Financial Liabilities 3.15 12.82 
Provisions. non-current 121.77 122.97 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) -
Deferred Government grants, non current - . 
Other non-current liabilities -
Total non..Current Liabilities 124.92 135.79 
Current Liabilities 
Current financial liabilities 

Borrowings, current 25715 270,65 

Other current financial liabilities 73.37 59.49 
Total current financial liabilities 330.S2 330.14 
Other current l iabilities 11 83 13.31 

Provisions, current . 0.04 

Current tax l iabilities -
Deferred Government grants, current . 
Total current liabilities 342.35 343.49 

liability directly associated with assets in disposal group classified as held for sale - -
Regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deferred tax liability " 

Total Liabilities 467.27 479.28 

Total Eauitv and Liabilities 1,825.61 1 832.36 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutlon~ited 

"'. fY-..{ • 1::3 "' i,--,... 
Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 25th May 2023 

Kolkata 
·~ \; ~t ' "· ..,.,,_ .... ,,_,~,1.~1/ 

Vi nay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00674665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Cash Flow generated I (used) in Operating Activities 
Profit /(Loss) before tax 
Adjustment for: 
Re-measurement on gratuity 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Interest Income 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Bad Debts / Sundry balances written off (net) 
Loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets Discarded 
Finance Costs 
Income tax refund 
Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes in Working Capital : 
- Decrease/(lncrease) in Current Assets 
- (Decrease)/ Increase in Current liabilities 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

Cash Flow used in Investing Activities 
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment 
Interest Received 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 

Cash Flow used in Financing Activities 
Repayments of Loan from related parties 
Finance Costs 
Proceeds from loan from related parties 
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 

Net increase /decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

• Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Audited) (Audited) 

5.60 4.91 

0.01 
0.07 0.04 

(0 59) (0.57) 
(10.24) (5.40) 

0 03 7.25 
1.08 (0.24) 

16.03 16.07 
(0 10) (0.02) 
11.88 22.05 

5.41 3 64 
11.74 (3.74) 
29.04 21.96 

0.06 (1 80) 
29.10 20.16 

(0 53) 0.70 
0.69 0.58 
0.16 1.28 

(21 .50) 
(16.03) (18.33) 

8.00 
(29.53) pa.33! 
(0.27) 3.11 

4.56 1.45 
4.29 4.56 

(0.27) 3.11 

As at As at 
March 31 2023 March 31 2022 

0.09 0 05 

4.20 4.51 

4.29 4.56 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutio~ited 

'V• w- I ta-1 n. 

Place: Kolkata 
Date : 25th May 2023 

o\~ata ~ _ 

-.~- .... :· 

"--. 
\ ', . . . 

. ~" . -

Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-Time Director 

DIN: 00574665 
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USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN- l31300WB1997PLC086210 

Registered Office: Godrej Waterside, Unit No. 1206, 12th Floor, Block DP- s, Sector- V, Salt Lake City, Kolkata • 700 091 
Tel: +91 33 68103700 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RES UL TS 
FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2023 

(Rs. in lakh) 

Particulars Quarter ended Vear ended 

31-03-2023 31-12-2022 31-03-2022 31 -03-2023 31-03-2022 

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) 

Revenue from Operations 9.86 11.50 16.71 65.55 78.37 
Other Income 7.11 3 86 1.67 15.52 1229 
Total lncomn 11+2) 16.97 15.36 18.38 81.07 90.66 

Expenses 
(a) Purchase of Traded Goods . - . 
(b) Employee Benefits Expense 6.60 5.80 6 74 25.30 29.16 
(c) Finance Costs 4 00 4.01 3.96 16.06 16 08 
(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 0 04 0.01 0.01 0 07 0.04 
(e) Other Expenses 2.81 4.09 4.48 31 79 38.94 
If\ Excentional Items . . 

Total Exnenses 13.45 13.91 15.19 73.22 84.22 

Profit before tax !3-4l 3.62 1.45 3.19 7.85 6.44 

Tax Expense 
(a) Current Tax 0 10 . 0.07 0 50 0.38 
(b) ShorV(Excess) provision of taxation for previous periods 0.00 0.34 . 1 02 . 
1 c \ Deferred Tax . . 

Total Tax Exoense 0.10 0.34 0.07 1.52 0.38 

Net Proflt/ll ossl tor the ooriod 15-6) 3.42 1.11 
Other Comprehensive income, net of income tax 

3.12 6.33 6.06 

(a) (i) items that will not be classified to prof~ or loss 0.01 . 0.01 
(ii) income tax relating to items that will not be classified to . . . . 

profrt or loss 

(b) (i) items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - . 
(ii) income tax relabng to items that will be redassified to . . 

profit or loss 

Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax 0.01 . . 0.01 

Total comp<ehensive Income for the period (7+8) 3.43 1.11 3.12 6.34 6.06 

Paid-up Equity Share Capital: (Face value Re. 1 each) 264.16 264.16 264.16 264 16 264.16 
Earnings per share (of Re. 1 each) (not annualised) 

(a) Basic (in Rs.) 0.01 0.00 0.01 0,02 0.02 
(b) Diluted (in Rs.) 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.02 0.02 

Notes : 

1) The above Financial Resulls, after review by the Audrt Committee. have been approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their 
meeting held on 25th May 2023. 

2) The above consolidated financial results have been compiled by following the principles set out in the Accounting Standard 21 "Consolidated 
Financial Statements". 

3) This statement has been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and amendments thereon and other recognised accounting practices and policies to the extent 
applicable. 



4
) The Company has only one reportable segment. Hence no segment repoting is required in accordance with IND AS 108 "Operating 

Segments" 

5) The Company has Unabsorbed Depreciation and Business Loss available for set off under the Income Tax Act. 1961. However, in view of 
inability to assess future taxable income in absence of any convincing evidence available to the management, the extent of net deferred tax 
assets which may be adjusted in the subsequent year is not ascertainable at this stage and accordingly the same has not been recognised in 

the accounts on consideration of prudence. 

6) Figures of last quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures of the full financial year and published figures up to the nine months 

ended 31.12.2022 of the respective financial year 

7) Statutory Auditors have provided an unmodified opinion on the Financial results 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 25th May 2023 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

"-I .ly.,[, ~~~ 
Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00574665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LIMITED 
CIN• L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Registered Office: Godrej Waterside, Unit No. 1206, 12th Floor, Block QP. 5, Sector. V, Salt Lake City, Kolkata. 700 091. 

Tel: +91 33 68103700 
Consolidated Statement of Assets & Liabilities 

(Rs. In Lakh) 
Particulars 31-03-23 31-03-22 

Audited Audited 
ASSETS 
Non-{;urrent Assets 

Property. Plant and Equipment 123.23 124.35 
Capital Work-in-Progress 
Investment Property 
Goodwill 
Other Intangible Assets 0.50 0 01 
Intangible assets under deve4opment 
Biological assets other than bearer plants 
Investments accounted for using equity method 

123.73 124.36 
Non-Current Financial Assets 

Non-Current Investments 1,550,00 1.550.00 
Trade receivables, non-current 6.57 12.40 
Other non-current financial assets 4.43 4.39 
Total Non-Current Financial Assets 1,661 .00 1,566.79 

Income Tax assets (net) 80.83 81.71 
Deferred Tax assets (net} . . 
Other non-current assets . . 

Total Non-{;urrent Assets 1,765.56 1,772.86 
Current Assets 

Inventories 
Current Financial assets 
Current Investments . 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.14 0.08 
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4.64 4.88 
Loans, current . 
Other current financial assets 58.05 70.80 

Total Current financial assets 62.83 76.76 
Current tax assets (net) 1.86 2.19 
other current assets 8.90 7.81 
Total Current assets 73.59 85.76 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
Regulatory deferral account debit balances and related deferred tax assets 
Total Assets 1,839.16 1,858.62 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

Equity Share Capital 264.16 264.16 
Other Equity 1.148 16 1,141.82 

Total Equity 1,412.32 1,405.98 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Non-Current Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings . . 

Trade payables 3.58 13.13 
Other Non-Current financial Liabilities . 

Total non-Current Financial Liabilities 3.58 13.13 
Provisions, non-current 121.77 122.97 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) . 
Deferred Government grants. non current . 
Other non-current liabilities . . 
Total non-Current Liabilities 125.35 136.10 
Current Liabilities 
Current financial liabilities 

Borrowings, current 257.15 27065 
Other current financial liabilities 31.65 31.65 

Total current financial llabllltles 288.80 302.30 
Other current l iabilities 12.68 14.20 
Provisions, current 0.04 
Current tax liabilities . 
Deferred Government grants. current . . 
Total current liabilities 301.48 316.54 

liability directly associated with assets in disposal group classified as held for sale . . 
Regulatory deferral account credit balances and related deferred tax liability . 
Total Liabilities 426.83 452.64 
Total Eauitv and Liabilities 1,839.15 1 868.62 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutio~imited 

'V• 'I,..( " -tg""'\-'h 

Place : Kolkata 
Dated : 25th May 2023 

::f.. 

"b. 
\~ 
~----'--.., 

Vinay Kumar Gupta 
Whole-lime Director 

DIN: 00574665 



USHA MARTIN EDUCATION & SOLUTIONS LTD. 
CIN: L31300WB1997PLC085210 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Cash Flow generated I (used) in Operating Activities 
Profit /(Loss) before tax 
Adjustment for: 
Re-measurement on gratuity 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Interest Income 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Bad Debts/ Sundry balances written off (net) 
Loss/ (Gain) on Tangible Assets Discarded 
Finance Costs 
Income tax refund 
Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for changes in Working Capital : 
- Decrease/(lncrease) in Current Assets 
- (Decrease)/ Increase in Current liabilities 

Cash generated from Operations 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net) 
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities 

Cash Flow used in Investing Activities 
Payments to acquire property, plant and equipment 
Interest Received 

Net Cash used in Investing Activities 

Cash Flow used in Financing Activities 
Repayments of Loan from related parties 
Finance Costs 
Proceeds from loan from related parties 
Net Cash used In Financing Activities 

Net increase /decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

• Amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company 

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise: 

Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 

-In current accounts 

Place: Kolkata 
Date : 25th May 2023 

(Rs. in Lakh) 

Year ended Year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

(Audited) (Audited) 

7.85 6.43 

0.01 
007 0.04 
(5.09) (507) 

(10.24) (5.40) 
0.04 7.76 
1.08 (0.24) 

16.06 16.08 
(0.11) (004) 
9.66 19.56 

5 16 3.33 
(2.05) (0.77) 
12.76 22.12 

(0 30) (2.20) 
12.46 1g_93 

(0.53) 0 70 
17.45 1.05 
16.92 1.75 

(21.50) 
(16.06) (18.35) 

8.00 
(29.56) (18.34) 

(0.18) 3.34 

4.96 1.62 
4.78 4 .96 

(0.18) 3.34 

As at Year ended 
March 31 2023 March 31 2022 

0.14 0.08 

4.64 4.88 

4.78 4.96 

For Usha Martin Education & Solution~ited 

"1' ~ \ ~-p~ 
Vi nay Kumar Gupta 

Whole-Time Director 
DIN: 00574665 



Dated: 25th May, 2023 

To, 
The Secretary 
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd 
Exchange Plaza, 

Plot No. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra ( East) 
Mumbai -400 051 

Dear Sir, 

Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

Godrej Waterside, Tower-2, 12th Floor 
Office No.: 1206, Block-DP, Sector-V 
Salt Lake City, Kolkata 700091 , India 

Tel : +91 33 6810 3700 
Website : www.umesl.co.in 

CIN -L31300WB1997PLC085210 

The Secretary 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street 
Mumbai - 400 001 

Re: Declaration under Regulation 33 (3) (d) of the LODR 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 33 (3) (d) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015, we hereby confirm that the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company has provided an unmodified opinion on the audited financial results of the Company 

for the year ended 31st March 2023. 

Thanking you, 

Yours t ruly 

For Usha Martin Education & Solutions Limited 

SUMEETKUMAR 

Company Secretary 

Enclosed: a/a 




